NOTE: Dinner will be served at 5:00 p.m. in the HCC Solarium.

AGENDA
Board of Trustees Meeting
November 15, 2004
6:00 p.m.
Regular Meeting
I. Call to Order by Chairperson
II. Roll Call by Secretary to the Board
III. Additions/Deletions to the Agenda
IV. Limited Public Comment Regarding Agenda Items
V. Public Hearing
Public Hearing on Setting the Regular Biennial Election Date
VI. Chairperson and Board Member Reports
A. Chairperson Laverty
1. Board Election Date Resolution
2. President’s Performance Review
3. December 13, 2004 Board Meeting – 5:00 p.m.
4. Women’s Resource Center Resolution
5. Board Development Session
6. Strategic Planning
7. Other
B. Board Member Reports
1. Trustee Canady – Japan Adventure Program
2. Trustee Rasmusson
a. Year-end Financial Audit
b. Bylaw 1.6.1
VII. President’s Report
A. Informational Items
1. College Spotlight – Diversity Initiative
2. Human Resources – New Hires, Leaves and Sabbaticals
3. Budget Update
4. West Campus Grand Opening
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B. Action Items
1. Approval of Minutes - October 18, 2004 Regular Meeting
2. St. Johns – Expanded Service Area
3. Facilities Master Plan
4. Michigan Federation of Teachers – Tentative Agreement
5. Finance
a. Approval of Bids
VIII. Closed Session*
IX. Public Comment
X. Adjournment

*Motion to accept.
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BOARD OF TRUSTEES
PLANNING CALENDAR
New items are in BOLD

November 2004
Nov. 12-13

“The Love of the Nightingale” by Timberlake Wertenbaker
Dart Auditorium – 8:00 p.m.
Admission: $5 students, $10 adults

Mon., Nov. 15

Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
HCC Board Room – 6:00 p.m.

Fri., Nov. 19

Silver Bells in the City
Kennedy Cafeteria – 6:00 p.m. – 9:00 p.m.
Hospitality Club Soup Sampler
Arts & Sciences Building Lobby – 6:00 p.m. – 8:00 p.m.

Sat., Nov. 20

12th Annual Great Lakes Anishnaabek Traditional Pow Wow
Gannon Vocational-Technical Building Gymnasium
Doors open at 11 a.m.
Grand Entries at 12:00 noon and 6:00 p.m.

Sat., Nov. 20

Elementary Science Olympiad
Arts & Sciences Building – 8:00 to 1:00 p.m.

Sat., Nov. 20

“Ded Mic Mono Rox” Performance by Theatre Students
Old Central 232 – 8:00 p.m.
Admission: FREE

December 2004
Fri., Dec. 3

LCC Jazz Ensemble & Jazz Combo
Dart Auditorium – 8:00 p.m.
Admission: Free

Sat., Dec. 4

Holiday Pop & Jazz
Dart Auditorium – 8:00 p.m.
Admission: Free

Mon., Dec. 6

Board Development Session
Location: TBA
Time: 8:00 to 5:00 p.m.

Thurs., Dec. 9

Percussion Ensemble
Dart Auditorium – 7:30 p.m.
Admission: Free

Fri., Dec. 10

Dance Open House – Showcase of LCC Dance Classes
GVT 3900-3950 – 6:00 to 8:00 p.m.
Admission: Free

(As of 11/10/04)
*Please call 483-9739 for tickets or reservations no later than one week prior to event.
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Dec. 10-11

“The Tempest” 2nd Semester Shakespeare Studio Theatre
Old Central 232 – 8:00 p.m.
Admission: Free

Sun., Dec. 12

Sounds of the Season (featuring the LCC Concert Choir & Women’s Chorus)
Plymouth Congregational Church – 4:00 p.m.
Admission: Free

Mon., Dec. 13

Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
HCC Board Room – 6:00 p.m.

Mon., Dec. 13

Board Appreciation Dinner
Location: TBA
Time: Immediately following Board of Trustees meeting

Dec. 17-18

“Stags and Hens” 1st Semester Contemporary Realism Studio Theatre
Old Central 232 – 8:00 p.m.
Admission: Free

Sat., Dec. 18

Stage Combat Open House
Dart Auditorium: 11 a.m. to 12 p.m.

January 2005
Tues., Jan. 18

Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
HCC Board Room – 6:00 p.m.

February 2005
Mon., Feb. 21

Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
HCC Board Room – 6:00 p.m.

March 2005
Mon., Mar. 21

Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
HCC Board Room – 6:00 p.m.

April 2005
Mon., Apr. 18

Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
HCC Board Room – 6:00 p.m.

May 2005
Fri., May 13

LCC Graduation
Location: TBA
Time: TBA

Mon., May 16

Regular Board of Trustees Meeting
HCC Board Room – 6:00 p.m.

(As of 11/10/04)
*Please call 483-9739 for tickets or reservations no later than one week prior to event.
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Lansing Community College
State of Michigan
RESOLUTION SETTING REGULAR
BIENNIAL ELECTION DATE
________________________________________________________
Minutes of a regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of the Lansing Community College, State
of Michigan (the “College”) held at 6:00 p.m. prevailing Eastern Time, on the 15th day of November,
2004, at the Herrmann Conference Center Board Room, located at 520 North Capitol Avenue, Lansing,
Michigan.

MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK AND STONE, P.L.C.

PRESENT:

Trustees

____________________________________________________________
____________________________________________________________

ABSENT:

Trustees

____________________________________________________________

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Trustee ________________________
and supported by Trustee _____________________________:
WHEREAS, the College currently holds its regular election for the office of trustee of the Board
of Trustees of the College (the “College”) biennially on the June regular school election date in odd
years; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Act 116, Public Acts of Michigan, 1954, as amended (the “Michigan
Election Law”), the June regular school election date has been abolished in the State of Michigan
beginning January 1, 2005, and thereafter; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 642(8) of Michigan Election Law, the College is required to
hold its regular biennial election for the office of trustee of the College at the odd-year November
general election; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 642(9) of Michigan Election Law the College may choose to
hold its regular biennial election on an alternate date as further provided in the Michigan Election Law;
and
WHEREAS, the College has determined that it is necessary and desirable to hold the College’s
regular biennial election for the office of trustee of the College on the odd-year November regular
election date; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 642(9) of Michigan Election Law, the College is required to
adopt a resolution choosing the date of the College’s regular biennial election for the office of trustee of

MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK AND STONE, P.L.C.

the College on the odd-year November regular election date; and
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 642(9) of Michigan Election Law, the College has held a public
hearing on this matter on November 15, 2004, with notice given in a manner designed to reach the
largest number of the jurisdiction’s qualified electors in a timely fashion.
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
1.

The College’s regular biennial election for the office of trustee in the year 2005 and

thereafter shall be held at the odd-year November regular election date.
2.

The Secretary of the Board is directed to file a certified copy of this Resolution with the

Secretary of State of the State of Michigan.
3.

All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions of this
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Resolution be and the same hereby are rescinded.
AYES: Trustees:

__________________________________________________________
_______________________________________________________________

NAYS: Trustees

__________________________________________________________

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED.

MILLER, CANFIELD, PADDOCK AND STONE, P.L.C.

___________________________________
Secretary, Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of the minutes of a regular
meeting of the Board of Trustees (the “Board”) of the Lansing Community College, State of Michigan,
held on November 15, 2004, insofar as the same relates to the public hearing and the adoption of the
resolution by the Board described therein, the copy of which resolution included in said minutes being a
true, correct and complete copy of the same, and that said meeting was conducted and public notice of
said meeting was given pursuant to and in full compliance with the Open Meetings Act, being Act 267,
Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that the minutes of said meeting were kept and will be or have been
made available as required by said Act.
____________________________________
Secretary, Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College

LALIB:129912.1\050806-00007
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Lansing Community College is defined by its mission, values and guiding principles and
advanced by its strategic plan. This 2004 progress report on the plan is submitted to the LCC
Board of Trustees for consideration. The report is organized by the strategic drivers that form
the core of the strategic plan as updated by the Board in May 2003. (See Appendix: LCC
2003 Strategic Plan Summary)
Highlights of 2004 Progress
Financial Balance



LCC’s enrollment growth continued in Fall 2004, with a total enrollment to date of
19,464. Total credit-hour delivery for Fall 2004 exceeded Fall 2003 by 5.4%, with
steady enrollment increases in on-line classes (6.6%). In the areas of priority need,
enrollment increased as well---developmental education by 11.4%, health care by
8.7%, math by 11.5%, science by 14.6%,and automotive by 18%.



The successful passage of the millage in 2001, along with modest increases in tuition
and course fees, have served to bring the three major sources of funding to the
College---State aid, property taxes, and tuition and fees--more closely in line with
State aggregate funding for Michigan’s 28 community colleges. However, LCC’s
property tax revenue as a percentage of total revenues remains below the State
average.



Projected savings from the Early Retirement Incentive Program in FY 2005 is $1.7
million. These staff savings are possible due to the use of technology, particularly the
self-service Oracle applications now in place across the College.



The Board of Trustees approved a change to billing hour pricing of College courses,
which took effect in Fall 2004. This pricing method allows the College to bring
revenue for College courses more in line with the cost of providing them and is
projected to generate an additional $2 million in FY 2005, assuming flat enrollments.



The Foundation received $1,050,640 in gifts in FY 2004, an increase of 152% over
FY 2003.



Nearly $902,840 has been raised for the Capital Campaign since July 2003.

Equity and Competitive Compensation



LCC continues to provide an attractive compensation and benefits package that leads
to impressive retention statistics. The full-time employee retention rate for June 2003
to July 2004 was 96.5%, excluding early retirements.



The College asked John Beck from Michigan State University’s Department of Labor
and Industrial Relations to assess labor/management relations and identify new ways
of working together on issues unrelated to negotiations. A Labor/Management Group
was formed and held its first meeting on November 3.
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Maintain Comprehensive Community College Approach



Over the past five years, Michigan State University (MSU) enrolled 1,738 LCC
transfer students who had 50 or more credits, earning them Junior class standing.
During their first semester at MSU, 54% of these students performed “above native”
(i.e., earned GPAs above the average for students who had entered MSU as
Freshmen), and 90% were in good standing (i.e., had a GPA of 2.0 or higher). This
level of success has been the pattern for the past three years.



The Division has continued to deploy a nationally-recognized curriculum
development process called DACUM (Develop a Curriculum) to make major changes
in curricula. The DACUM process includes a modularization step to accommodate
the open-entry open-exit (OE/OE) format planned for the M-TEC. OE/OE classes are
college credit courses where students choose the time, length, and pace of their
courses.



A new Automotive High Performance Curriculum is being developed, using the
DACUM process and a panel of industry experts. Work on course development will
begin in Spring 2005.



A new 3+1 articulation agreement with Ferris State University has been created to
provide an educational path for students who are interested in furthering their career
in manufacturing. Students may opt to continue their schooling at LCC in Ferris State
University’s Industrial Technology and Management Bachelor of Applied Science
degree.



A new partnership with Lincoln Electric Company will allow welding students to use
state-of-the-art welding technology that can increase productivity and reduce labor
and rework costs. The M-TEC®, which will be outfitted with 51 welding stations, will
have the latest Lincoln equipment so that students can go back to their employers and
recommend innovative ways of welding.



A new partnership with Siemens Building Technologies, Inc. will assist the College
in becoming recognized as a national leader in energy education and training for
business and industry. Siemens will provide assistance in curriculum development,
donations of equipment, scholarships, internships, co-op opportunities for students,
and professional development activities for faculty and staff.



A new partnership with Haas Automation and Gerotech, Inc. will ensure that the
latest computer numerical control machinery and equipment will be accessible to
students at the M-TEC. The Haas equipment is valued at $537,460. Haas has agreed
to update the equipment every six months so that LCC students will have access to
the latest technology. In return, the College will showcase the equipment and act as a
demonstration site.



A new Associate Degree in Alternative Energy Engineering Technology has been
developed and will include seminars, workshops, and classes. The curriculum will
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cover various aspects of renewable energy, such as solar, wind, biomass, fuel cell,
and geothermal, most of which will be demonstrated at the M-TEC.


A new Academic Bridge Program works with community partners, such as the Black
Child & Family Institute and Closing the Digital Gap, to provide technology and
college-readiness training to low-income academically under-prepared individuals.
The program helps students become familiar with the demands of college courses,
sharpen their academic skills, develop relationships with peers, faculty, and staff and
budget their time and resources for academic success.



The Police and Fire Academies were completed filled, with growth in enrollment of
females in the Fire Academy of 6.7%. Police Academy female enrollment has been
relatively stable, averaging 27.5% over the last two years.



The Nursing Program has fully implemented its three growth initiatives: 32
additional full-time students, 32 part-time students, and 24 fast-track students. The
total student admissions per year are now 184, giving the College the potential to
offer 184 new registered nurses to the regional workforce each year, an increase of
92% over 2002.



LCC nursing student success rates in 2003-04 exceed those of the state and nation.
The LCC pass rate for practical nurses was 98.85% (national was 88.69%; state was
97.53%). The pass rate for registered nurse examinees was 93.02% (national was
86.62%; state was 86.99%).



The Health and Human Service Careers Department has experienced an average of
36% growth in enrollment across its eight program areas, five of which are nationally
accredited.



Working with various partners, including the Family Independence Agency, Dental
Hygiene has been actively engaged in offering dental services to underserved
populations within the greater Lansing area.



The Business & Community Institute (BCI) maintained ISO 9001:2000 registration,
as established in 2003, continuing its market credibility in providing performance
solutions to global business and industry.



The BCI provided training services to over 75 organizations, and 2,925 participants
for a total of 86,753 training hours.



LCC has continued its successful partnership with UAW/GM in the operation of two
Education Skill Centers within General Motors for Local #652 & #602. BCI
personnel provide support for basic education (math and reading) as well as a wide
range of computer-based classes.



The departments of Mathematical Skills and Language Skills served more than 9,200
students per semester, with a retention rate of 70%.
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More students are being served in the program areas of priority need. Significant
enrollment increases occurred in health care (8.7%), developmental education
(11.4%), math (11.5%), science (14.6%), and automotive (18%).
o The Developmental Education Programs are focusing on improving the
percentage of students who pass their exit competency measures and achieve
success in subsequent Core courses.
o The Financial Aid Office has increased its disbursement of Federal Direct
Student Loan Dollars from $6.6 million in 1999-2000 to $12.7 million in
2003-2004.



A National Articulation and Transfer Network (NATN) Agreement was signed to
facilitate the transfer of LCC associate degree recipients into participating
baccalaureate degree granting colleges and universities. The NATN helps students of
color identify opportunities for educational advancement and success at both two- and
four-year colleges. This relationship will allowed students earning an Associate of
Arts or Science degree with a 2.5 GPA to have a seamless transfer to more than 200
colleges and universities.



LCC initiated articulation discussions with the following Historically Black Colleges
and Universities for specific program requirements and scholarships/financial aid
opportunities: Howard University, Xavier College, Hampton University, Morgan
State University, Tennessee State University, Fisk University, Bowie State University
and Norfolk University.



From Fall 2003 to Fall 2004, enrollment in on-line classes increased by 6.6%.
Overall, on-line and hybrid course enrollments increased from 12% to 13%.
Enrollment also increased at learning centers by 4% and at off-campus sites,
including West Campus, by 154.9%.



Web registration for Fall 2004 classes is at an all-time high of 73% compared with
67% in 2003 and 60% in 2002. Web-based continues to be the avenue of registration
that LCC students prefer.



The M-TEC portion of the West Campus facility was completed in late Spring 2004,
and the Business & Community Institute, machine shop, welding, construction, and
electrical programs moved into the new facility in June 2004. The College held its
grand opening of the West Campus on Monday, November 8, with more than 700
people attending. The building will be fully operational for all instructional programs
by Spring 2005.



Work is progressing on schedule for the new Health and Human Services (HHS)
Building and a new Administrative Services Building. The HHS building will be
home to LCC’s 11 health career programs beginning Fall semester 2005. The
Administrative Services Building is on schedule for completion in June 2005.
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The Board of Trustees approved an energy master plan, a partnership with Siemens
Building Technologies to substantially update utility systems in all College buildings.
The $3.5 million investment over the next several years is guaranteed to save
$240,000 in utility costs beginning the first full year after equipment installation.



Collaboration Suite Release 2 was installed, providing staff and faculty with the
capability of conducting Web Conferencing. It provides faculty with a more effective
and collaborative means of communicating with students, and students can now store
files on-line, access an on-line calendar, and share documents with faculty.



The implementation of a new timecard system, as well as a streamlined Faculty
Workload System, has ensured more timely and accurate payroll reporting.



The Oracle Student System is currently in a parallel mode having converted 5 years
worth of data for 80,000+ students. The go live date for total implementation is set for
April 2005.



An on-line survey tool has been deployed to provide timely feedback from users of
College services. An on-line Evaluation of Instruction was piloted in Summer 2004 to
replace the paper survey format of distribution within the classroom. The on-line
format is expected to generate a savings of $50,000.



LCC implemented “Pay for Use” for Student Printing in the Computer Labs and
Libraries. As part of a student’s tuition each. A student receives 150 credits for
printing per semester. This will save an estimated $80,000 per year.



The Oracle Corporation invited ISCD to become a member of the Higher Education
Advisory Board. This Board provides direction to Oracle on future software
development efforts within higher education. LCC is one of seven higher education
institutions on this board and the only community college.

Continuous Improvement Processes



A key component of the College’s participation in AQIP is the development of a
Systems Portfolio, the process for which began this year. The portfolio describes the
College’s processes for accomplishing its mission and goals and will include
responses to approximately 150 questions regarding institutional context, processes,
results and improvements. The College will complete the portfolio well before its
May 2005 due date.



The President supported an internal task force recommendation to create a Learning
and Leading Collaborative (LLC) that will (1) coordinate, enhance and align LCC’s
learning and leading programs and activities; (2) select program content, with a focus
on leadership competencies; (3) develop and implement a comprehensive
communication and implementation plan; and (4) promote competencies of high
performers. A Steering Committee was appointed to carry out the charge.
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To support and advance LCC’s commitment to fairness and equal opportunity, the
Executive Office launched a new intercultural-based project in November. The
project will focus on student success, leadership development, and employment
processes.



The Board of Trustees approved a $500,000 Employee Initiatives Fund. The newly
formed Labor/Management Group and the Learning and Leading Collaborative
Steering Committee will provide recommendations on how the funds will be used to
benefit employees.



LCC executive leaders, as well as Division faculty and staff, continued their
involvement in external organizations, projects and activities that benefit the Lansing
region.



To help assure that the Clinton County Center continues to meet the needs of area
students and employers, a Clinton County Center Advisory Group comprised of
community leaders was created. With this community input, LCC will be in the best
position to provide the programs and services that will benefit Clinton County
students and employers.



LCC TV is now offering the community and students more in-depth and diverse
programming. Collaborations with WTVS, Detroit’s Public Television station, and
local business and community leaders have led to seven new programs that focus on
business and public policy issues, political commentary, diversity, art, and leadership.
In addition, LCC-TV launched a new sports program and brought its most popular
radio program to television.
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FINANCIAL BALANCE
The strategy to achieve financial balance has involved several threads:
•
•
•
•
•
•

Bring revenue streams nearer to equal contributions and more in line with state norms
Reduce institutional administrative costs as a percentage of total expenditures,
thereby freeing up dollars for direct instruction
Bring revenue for College courses more in line with the cost of providing them
Explore and cultivate alternative revenue sources
Increase giving to the LCC Foundation
Explore the expansion of tax-district boundaries

Revenue Streams
Since FY 2001, the College has lost more than $15 million in State support, assuming a 2%
annual increase in State aid in each of the last four fiscal years. The College’s FY 2005 State
appropriation of $28.6 million is more than $3.6 million less than its State aid allocation in
FY 2002. Due to the College’s financial balance model, a strategic driver designed to prepare
for the certainty of State cuts, the College has been able to maintain quality services to
students during these difficult times.
The successful passage of the millage in 2001, along with modest increases in tuition and
course fees, have served to bring the three major sources of funding to the College---State
aid, property taxes, and tuition and fees--more closely in line with State aggregate funding
for Michigan’s 28 community colleges. However, LCC’s property tax revenue as a
percentage of total revenues remains below the State average. Despite budget reductions, the
College’s State aid remains a bit higher as a percentage of total revenues when compared to
State aggregate figures.
General Fund Revenues, Percent of Total
45.0%
40.0%
LCC FY 2003

35.0%
30.0%

LCC FY 2004
(unaudited)

25.0%

State Aggregate (FY
2003 data)

20.0%
15.0%
10.0%
5.0%
0.0%
State Aid

Property
Taxes

Tuition and
Fees

Other
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Administrative Costs
Reduction of institutional administrative costs continues to be achieved. In the past 18
months, 37 faculty, administrative and support staff members voluntarily left the College
through an Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) offered in June 2003. The goal
was to replace all faculty positions one for one, but just one position for every two
administrative and support staff positions vacated. Projected savings from the ERIP in
FY 2005 is $1.7 million. These staff savings are possible due to the use of technology,
particularly the self-service Oracle applications now in place across the College.
Course Pricing
In Spring 2004, the Board of Trustees approved a change to billing hour pricing of
College courses, which took effect in Fall 2004. This pricing method allows the College
to bring revenue for College courses more in line with the cost of providing them. This
change is projected to generate an additional $2 million in FY 2005, assuming flat
enrollments.
All of these factors enabled the FY 2005 budget to be adopted with modest tuition
increases. In-district tuition was increased by just 1.9%, to $55 per billing hour. At $55,
LCC’s in-district rate remains among the lowest of Michigan’s community colleges, and
the College charges few across-the-board fees to its students. For instance, 21 community
colleges now charge a technology fee to all students; LCC does not.
Alternative Revenue Sources
In 2004 the Office of Enterprise and Resource Development was established to
(1) increase non-philanthropic revenue-generating opportunities from existing capacities
within the institution, (2) ensure optimal production from existing revenue generation
activities, and (3) develop new enterprise opportunities that fit with LCC’s mission and
ability to deliver.
The office will use existing capacities, skills and products where available and ensure that
the products, activities and capacities are first and foremost developed for LCC and its
needs, not exclusively for external markets. The efforts will have an established
evaluation process with exit opportunities that focus on risk management to protect the
institution.
LCC Foundation
The LCC Foundation’s Transition to Excellence program continued to improve outcomes
for the College. The Foundation’s goals included improvement in three key areas:
•
•
•

Increased annual giving revenues in both unrestricted, restricted and scholarship
programs
Continued planning for a $3.5 million Capital Campaign to help fund major
projects
Improved effectiveness of the Foundation’s administrative systems, including
donor information systems, scholarship allocation and office systems
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Significant results have been achieved, including:


The Foundation received $1,050,640 in gifts in FY 2004, an increase of 152%
over FY 2003.



Nearly $902,840 has been raised for the Capital Campaign since July 2003



Implementation of the capital campaign’s initial stages, which included a firstever employee campaign that has raised nearly $175,000 in gifts and pledges to
date



Recruitment of Mr. Joseph D. Reid, Chairman & CEO of Capitol Bancorp,
Limited, as the campaign chairperson



A renewed solicitation program that emphasizes unrestricted gifts while still
supporting scholarships



A new Foundation staffing plan that included a reorganization and redefinition of
job responsibilities to better address priorities and direct personnel resources to
active fund-raising roles

Expand Tax-District Boundaries
The College continued to pursue the strategic initiative to serve the higher education
needs of the communities outside of the existing LCC tax district. As a comprehensive
community college that serves a growing region, providing affordable, convenient access
to higher education opportunities is essential to the economic success of the region.
The College conducted public opinion surveys in the communities of St. Johns, Eaton
Rapids and Charlotte to learn more about the key issues and needs that residents face in
those areas and how LCC might be able to respond to them. The surveys found that LCC
has a strong reputation and high credibility in all three areas. St. Johns residents are most
interested in the personal, economic and community benefits of joining the LCC district.
College leaders have met with St. Johns’ decision makers in small groups and in one–onone meetings to learn more about the needs and interests of the community. Planning is
underway on a ballot proposal that will offer St. Johns residents the opportunity to join
the LCC district through a community vote in February 2005.
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EQUITY AND
COMPETITIVE COMPENSATION
The College has continued to balance its goal of preserving financial soundness while
maintaining competitive wages for faculty and staff.
LCC continues to provide an attractive compensation and benefits package that leads to
impressive retention statistics. The full-time employee retention rate for June 2003 to
July 2004 was 96.5%, excluding early retirements.
As health care costs continue to rise at disproportionate rates, a partnership of
management and labor leaders continues to meet regularly to review the situation and
work on creative ways to assure affordability and value in health-related benefits.
This year, six of the College’s seven collective bargaining agreements expired.
Negotiations between management and labor leaders have been productive and
collaborative. Agreement has been reached on five contracts, with agreement in principle
on the sixth. They encompass modest increases and short-term agreements in order to
allow for flexibility in negotiating future health care benefits.
The development of a wage and class structure at LCC has done much to assure equity
among full-time faculty and staff. This year, management and labor leaders have
negotiated similar structures for part-time employees. New language has been negotiated
to provide additional rights for employees in the event that a reduction in staff is
necessary. A program to provide limited health care coverage for adjunct faculty was
successfully implemented, and similar programs are under negotiation with associations
representing part-time non-teaching staff.
The College asked John Beck from Michigan State University’s Department of Labor and
Industrial Relations to assess labor/management relations and identify new ways of
working together on issues unrelated to negotiations. A Labor/Management Group was
formed and held its first meeting on November 3. In addition, the Director of Human
Resources meets weekly with MAHE’s President to discuss issues.
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MAINTAIN COMPREHENSIVE
COMMUNITY COLLEGE APPROACH
LCC has maintained its comprehensive nature, offering learning opportunities in four
areas:





General Education
Career and Workforce Development
Developmental Education
Personal Enrichment

The strategic plan also identified five “Areas of Priority Need”: automotive-related
learning, health-care learning, developmental education, financial assistance, and
mathematics and science.
Following is a discussion of the progress made in 2004 in the above learning areas, as
well as in other strategies, such as facilities and technology, that support a comprehensive
approach.
General Education
General Education refers to learning that (a) is required for students who want to transfer
to a four-year college or university and (b) supports students in career and workforce
divisions. General education enrollment was 22,247 in Fall 2004 (duplicated headcount).
More than 90% of the College’s general education courses are offered in the Liberal
Studies Division. Major accomplishments include:


Assessment of learning outcomes continued to be an important emphasis. All of
the large, multi-section general education courses, which make up 65% of the
Division’s total enrollment, now have course assessment plans in place to assure
that students are attaining the learning outcomes for each course.



Over the past five years, Michigan State University (MSU) enrolled 1,738 LCC
transfer students who had 50 or more credits, earning them Junior class standing.
During their first semester at MSU, 54% of these students performed “above
native” (i.e., earned GPAs above the average for students who had entered MSU
as Freshmen), and 90% were in good standing (i.e., had a GPA of 2.0 or higher).
This level of success has been the pattern for the past three years.



The Division is in the first year of an articulation agreement with Grand Rapids
Community College (GRCC) in which GRCC teaches LCC’s first-year Sign
Language Interpretation curriculum on its campus and then sends its students to
LCC for their second year.
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The Division, in coordination with International Programs, offered students
international field experiences in Japan, Mexico, Costa Rica, Germany, and
Ghana.



An articulation agreement was signed with Eastern Michigan University (EMU)
for Elementary Education. This agreement is part of an effort to promote
articulation between LCC Livingston County Center students and the EMUBrighton campus.



A new curriculum in Physical Education was added to the existing articulation
agreement with Central Michigan University for teacher certification at the
secondary level.



The Central Michigan University/LCC partnership in teacher education was
expanded to include a Lansing-based program for elementary education beginning
in Spring 2005.



The Division has infused diversity outcomes throughout its teacher preparation
program. All of the state-recommended diversity learning outcomes are included
in at least 75% of LCC’s 14 teacher preparation courses.



Using a centralized scheduling system in the Teacher Preparation Program, the
Division prepared and distributed a schedule plan that allows cohorts to complete
an LCC teacher preparation curriculum at three sites---Livingston County Center,
Clinton County Center, and Lansing campus.



The Physical Fitness and Wellness Department and the Eaton Intermediate School
District developed a new articulated curriculum for high school students
interested in the Sports Medicine branch of Kinesiology.



The Division continued to implement its multi-year plan to improve and expand
science labs. This past year two new physical science labs were created from
three existing classrooms. A new cell biology lab was constructed adjacent to the
recently renovated microbiology lab so that more biology sections can be offered.
The chemistry instrument room was moved to a larger space to accommodate new
computer-controlled equipment for student use.



In response to continuing increases in demand for Science courses (averaging
over 15% per year in recent years), the Science Department is increasing its
Friday and weekend course offerings in Spring 2005 by 44% over last year. It
also is expanding course offerings at the Livingston County Center and Clinton
County Center, as well as introducing classes in Okemos and Holt in Spring 2005.

Career and Workforce Development
LCC continues to excel in creating relevant Career and Workforce Development
programs that reflect the needs of the community.
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Technology Careers Division



The Division has continued to deploy a nationally-recognized curriculum
development process called DACUM (Develop a Curriculum) to make major
changes in curricula. The DACUM process includes a modularization step to
accommodate the open-entry open-exit (OE/OE) format planned for the M-TEC.
OE/OE classes are college credit courses where students choose the time, length,
and pace of their courses.



A new Automotive High Performance Curriculum is being developed, using the
DACUM process and a panel of industry experts. Work on course development
will begin in Spring 2005. At least two courses are expected to be developed by
Summer 2005 and available in Fall 2005.



The scope of work for the development of hydrogen safety courses has been
completed and faculty professional development has begun. Faculty members
have attended Hydrogen Safety Courses and begun research for both the
Hydrogen Safety Seminar as well as the 16-week semester Hydrogen Safety
Course. The courses are expected to be offered in Fall 2005.



A new 3+1 articulation agreement with Ferris State University has been created to
provide an educational path for students who are interested in furthering their
career in manufacturing. This Industrial Manufacturing Engineering Technology
Associate in Applied Science degree will give students the opportunity to study a
variety of technologies used in today’s industry. Students may opt to continue
their schooling at LCC in Ferris State University’s Industrial Technology and
Management Bachelor of Applied Science degree.



A new partnership with Lincoln Electric Company will allow welding students to
use state-of-the-art welding technology that can increase productivity and reduce
labor and rework costs. The M-TEC, which will be outfitted with 51 welding
stations, will have the latest Lincoln equipment so that students can go back to
their employers and recommend innovative ways of welding.



A new partnership with Siemens Building Technologies, Inc. will assist the
College in becoming recognized as a national leader in energy education and
training for business and industry. Siemens will provide assistance in curriculum
development, donations of equipment, scholarships, internships, co-op
opportunities for students, and professional development activities for faculty and
staff.



A new partnership with Haas Automation and Gerotech, Inc. will ensure that the
latest computer numerical control machinery and equipment will be accessible to
students at the M-TEC. The Haas equipment is valued at $537,460. Haas has
agreed to update the equipment every six months so that LCC students will have
access to the latest technology. In return, the College will showcase the equipment
and act as a demonstration site.
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A new Associate Degree in Alternative Energy Engineering Technology has been
developed and will include seminars, workshops, and classes. The curriculum will
cover various aspects of renewable energy, such as solar, wind, biomass, fuel cell,
and geothermal, many of which will be demonstrated at the M-TEC. The
curriculum was developed in partnership with NextEnergy and will be a statewide
curriculum transferrable to Lawerence Tech, Wayne State University, Kettering,
and the University of Michigan.

Business Management and Information Technology Division


In partnership with Cisco Learning Systems, the electronics curriculum was
transformed to a Home Technology Integration program that will include
certification testing. Work began on updating the Photo Imaging curriculum to
incorporate digital imaging technology.



Formal partnership agreements were established for the Microsoft IT Academy,
Novell Education Academic Partner Program, the Oracle Academic Initiative, and
the Microsoft Developers Network Academic Alliance. The Division is now a
CompTIA---an industry-neutral provider of certifications within a variety of IT
areas, such as A+, Network+, and Linux.



The Hospitality Program became a nationally licensed school for the Travel
Institute, a two-year program that trains and certifies Travel Associates, Travel
Consultants, and Destination Specialists. The National Restaurant Association
allows the program to educate and certify students in the nationally recognized
Serv-Safe program as well as other hospitality courses through the ProManagement program.



A new Academic Bridge Program works with community partners, such as the
Black Child & Family Institute and Closing the Digital Gap, to provide
technology and college-readiness training to low-income academically underprepared individuals. The program helps students become familiar with the
demands of college courses, sharpen their academic skills, develop relationships
with peers, faculty, and staff and budget their time and resources for academic
success.

Human, Health & Public Service Careers Division
Public Service Careers Department



The department is engaged in moving to the West Campus, with classes and
training beginning there full-time in January 2005.



The department completely filled Police and Fire Academies, with growth in
enrollment of females in the Fire Academy of 6.7%. Police Academy female
enrollment has been relatively stable, averaging 27.5% over the last two years.



All curricula have completed DACUM and Gap Analysis processes since Summer
2004, leading to curriculum improvements in the Law Enforcement, Fire Science,
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and Corrections programs and progress in achieving the divisional goal of
developing modularized, flexible, multiple entry and exit point curricula to better
serve 21st century workforce needs.


The Fire Science program has begun the process for obtaining national
accreditation, which will enable the College and its partner, Lake Superior State
University, to offer a four-year, nationally accredited, baccalaureate Fire Science
degree on the campus of LCC. This is the only such partnership in the United
States.



The Fire Science program has received approval to purchase two burn chambers
that will offer safe, state-of-the-art simulated burn training for pre-service and inservice firefighters. They will offer significantly improved training opportunities
to the entire Mid-Michigan region. The chambers constitute the first steps toward
developing a Regional Training Facility for all emergency systems, which would
be only the second such training center in the State.

Nursing Careers Department



The Nursing Program has fully implemented its three growth initiatives: 32
additional full-time students, 32 part-time students, and 24 fast-track students.
The total student admissions per year are now 184, giving the College the
potential to offer 184 new registered nurses to the regional workforce each year,
an increase of 92% over 2002.



The Nursing program has implemented supplemental instruction through its
curriculum-wide pharmacological math component, thus enhancing student
readiness and success. In addition, supplemental instruction has been
implemented for two Nursing prerequisite courses.



LCC nursing student success rates in 2003-04 exceed those of the state and
nation. The LCC pass rate for practical nurses was 98.85% (national was 88.69%;
state was 97.53%). The pass rate for registered nurse examinees was 93.02%
(national was 86.62%; state was 86.99%).



Credit hour generation in the Community Health Services Education (CHSE)
program increased by 71.3% from 1998 to 2003. In addition, Community Health
Services has accomplished
o State approval of all 9 CHSE certificate programs
o Addition of a Phlebotomy practicum course to the Phlebotomy curriculum
o Modularization of Medical Terminology courses to serve a crosscurricular function within the Division
o Development of and assessment of cross-curricular competencies across
all nine CHSE curricula
o Expansion of CHSE advisory council to include representation of all nine
program disciplines
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o Increase of 35% in Competency Evaluated Nurse Aide (CENA) testing,
offering significant workforce additions for mid-Michigan in the area of
certified nursing assistants
Health and Human Service Careers Department



The department has experienced an average of 36% growth in enrollment across
its eight program areas, five of which are nationally accredited.



Emergency Medical Services has completed DACUM and Gap Analysis
processes, thus enhancing the National Curriculum that was piloted at LCC a year
before national adoption. In addition, EMS is modularizing numerous courses in
preparation for the HHPS cross-curricular modular project and the additional
mastery learning flexibility that modularized curriculum offers.



Child Development has developed an initiative to offer on-line CDA credentialing
education to increase access for providers throughout Michigan and to improve
early childhood education within private homes and early childhood learning
environments.



The Early Learning Childhood Center (ELCC) continues to flourish in its two
partnerships (with HeadStart, 3C, and Central Michigan Free Methodist Church),
and is seeking resources to expand to include infant/toddler facilities. This
program offers laboratory experiences for LCC students within a variety of LCC
curricula.



Working with various partners, including the Family Independence Agency,
Dental Hygiene has been actively engaged in offering dental services to
underserved populations within the greater Lansing area.



LCC again received the Mental Health and Aging Grant to provide statewide
seminars and educational forums in the area of gerontology education.



The Massage Therapy program is preparing for national accreditation, having
been engaged for several years in transitioning from a “recreational massage” to a
“therapeutic massage” program.



Imaging Technology programs are growing rapidly because of the addition of
clinical sites. The programs are nationally accredited, with Sonography having
just received separate national accreditation status in 2004; it is one of three
nationally accredited programs in the State of Michigan.
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Business and Community Institute

The Business & Community Institute (BCI) met the challenge of developing a costrecovery plan with incremental cost-recovery targets. Critical to implementation of the
plan are the following accomplishments and strategies:


Maintained ISO 9001:2000 registration, as established in 2003, continuing BCI’s
market credibility in providing performance solutions to global business and
industry. BCI continues to provide training to customers for registration for ISO
9000 and 14000 management systems.



Designed a Lean Office Series to bring the powerful concept of “lean” from
applications in repetitive manufacturing to all administrative office areas of
business and industry. This will be an exclusive product of the BCI, with video
production support form LCC Media Services.



Continued the collaborative partnership with Capital Area Michigan Works!
agencies in Eaton, Ingham, and Clinton Counties providing WorkKeys profiles,
assessment, and workforce development to ten Lansing area businesses serving
188 participants with training dollars totaling $127,000.



Provided training services to over 75 organizations, and 2,925 participants for a
total of 86,753 training hours.



LCC has continued its successful partnership with UAW/GM in the operation of
two Education Skill Centers within General Motors for Local #652 & #602. BCI
personnel provide support for basic education (math and reading) as well as a
wide range of computer-based classes.



Worked with Michigan State University Human Resource Development to (1)
offer online workshops for employee professional development, and (2) design
and implement customized “Tools for Process Improvement” training intended to
lean out processes and prepare staff for implementation of a new electronic forms
tracking utility.



Partnered with Development Dimensions International (DDI) to offer world-class
leadership, workplace and customer service training programs to BCI customers.
DDI’s innovative solutions, including Web-based technologies, are supported by
a team of 1,000 experienced associates in 70 locations around the world.



Partnered with the South Central Michigan Chapter and National American
Society for Training and Development (ASTD) to offer LCC staff, community
members, and BCI customers a certificate in Human Performance Improvement.
Participants completing the series of five 30-hour workshops earn a nationally
recognized credential as workplace learning and performance consultants. Along
with the University of Michigan, BCI/LCC is one of only two sites in Michigan
offering the certificate.
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Developmental Education
LCC continues to excel in providing developmental education in math, writing, and
English as a second language.


The departments of Mathematical Skills and Language Skills served more than
9,200 students per semester, with a retention rate of 70%. Both areas offer
multiple modalities, including learning lab, traditional classroom lecture, on-line,
lecture laboratory combination, on-line lab combination, and learning
communities.



The Department of Language Skills, English as a Second Language created two
new courses, Computer Literacy for ESL Students, and Applied Grammar for
Writing.



An online Writing Skills Review course was created and will be taught Spring
semester 2005.



Individualized learning modules were created for the Language Skills Learning
Center.



An audio/visual computer disc was created to help students with vocabulary and
pronunciation.

Personal Enrichment
Part of LCC’s comprehensive community college approach involves offering personal
enrichment opportunities to the community. Because almost any of LCC’s courses could
be taken for personal enrichment reasons, obtaining quantitative data in this area is
difficult.
Areas of Priority Need
Significant progress has been made in the five “Areas of Priority Need” identified in the
Strategic Plan: automotive-related learning, health-care learning, developmental
education, financial assistance, and mathematics and science. More students are being
served in the program areas of priority need. Significant enrollment increases occurred in
health care (8.7%), developmental education (11.4%), math (11.5%), science (14.6%),
and automotive (18%). Each area has selected specific performance measures and
processes to improve in the coming year. Examples include:


The Science Department has designed, tested and implemented a proficiency test for
prospective students in anatomy and physiology. Evaluation of the effectiveness of
this proficiency test in improving student success rates is underway, using pre- and
post-tests as well as outcome-based assessment.



The Math and Computer Science Department is striving to increase student success
by developing a data processing system for tracking seven success-related variables.
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The Health Care area has identified retention in the EMS program as a measure they
would like to improve. They are focusing on curriculum revisions and an adjustment
in prerequisites to accomplish this improvement.



The Developmental Education Programs are focusing on improving the percentage of
students who pass their exit competency measures and achieve success in subsequent
Core courses.



Automotive is introducing a new Automotive High Performance Curriculum. A task
analysis has been completed using the DACUM process and a panel of industry
experts. A survey is in the process of being prepared to validate the DACUM results.



The Financial Aid Office has increased its disbursement of Federal Direct Student
Loan Dollars from $6.6 million in 1999-2000 to $12.7 million in 2003-2004.

Student Success
Student learning outcomes are in place for all courses, and systems have been established
to ensure that all programs have student-learning outcomes that are based on industry and
national standards. Also, the number of community advisory groups and their role in
establishing program learning outcomes have increased. Assessment of CORE (general
education) learning outcomes continued this year with an emphasis on Writing and
Science. Information from the assessment process will be used to improve instruction and
student learning experiences.
Each Division is working to improve the success rates in its courses, particularly online
courses. The SAS Division has developed a readiness assessment instrument to help
students determine if they are ready for online classes. Also, course and basic skills
prerequisites are being reviewed to assure that students have the prerequisite knowledge
and skills to be successful in LCC classes.
In partnership with all academic areas, the Student and Academic Support Division
provides critical and updated services to meet the College’s student success goal.
Services include:













Multicultural Center
Counseling and Advising
Assessment Center
Language Skills Department
Math Skill Department
Tutorial Services
Media Services
Library Services
Student Life Department
Athletics Department
Career and Employment Services
Financial Aid Department
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To support and advance LCC’s commitment to fairness and equal opportunity, a new
intercultural-based project was launched in November. Part of this project will focus on
improving the coordination and implementation of support services to increase students’
academic success and personal experience, particularly of minority and international
students, women students, and students with disabilities.
In addition, LCC began working with the Hispanic Association of Colleges and
Universities to build connections with Historically Hispanic Colleges and Universities
(HHCUs) and learn about best practices for improving Hispanic students’ success.
As part of the Carl D. Perkins grant-funded activities for 2004-05, the Academic Affairs
Office monitors the College’s performance on seven different Perkins Performance
Indicators for occupational programs and coordinates efforts to continuously improve the
results on those indicators. Highlights of these activities include:


A coordinated program of student peer assistance (Supplemental Instruction)
designed specifically for occupational students in both face-to-face and online
courses.



A coordinated program of curriculum improvement and technology-readiness to
support occupational student success in on-line information technology courses.



Instructional modules allowing mastery learning of student learning outcomes.
Pre- and post-tests will ensure competencies for each module.



Creation of a job placement and internship specialist position in the Career and
Employment Services Department to expand internship opportunities and job
placement for occupational students.



Special Populations (SPops) staff will provide accommodations for students with
disabilities and tutorial services to ensure access to and success in occupational
programs



SPops advisors and counselors will conduct outreach activities; determine
eligibility; provide intake appointments, counseling and advising,
bilingual/language support services; administer child care awards & other
supportive services; and provide academic monitoring and follow-up and
cultural/diversity awareness activities.



Implementation of internships and service learning opportunities in Health
Careers, Criminal Justice and Fire Science programs.

Careers Articulation and Coordination
The College actively collaborates with four-year colleges/universities in an effort to
increase educational opportunities and access to advanced degrees and training for LCC
students. Collaborative efforts include formal articulation agreements, transfer guides,
distance learning opportunities, availability of four-year college/university
courses/programs on the LCC campus, plus other cooperative initiatives.
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Articulation/Partnership Agreements: This year the College has added or updated
agreements with six schools. One of these agreements provides LCC students an
opportunity to earn a bachelors degree completely online, while three of the agreements
allow students to transfer more than the typical 60 semester credits toward the
baccalaureate degree. Information related to LCC articulation agreements is available at
www.lcc.edu/articulation.


Central Michigan University: B.S. in Secondary Physical Education (Additional
LCC courses beyond 60 semester credits can be transferred to this program.)



Eastern Michigan University: B.S. in Elementary Education (All of the courses,
representing 81 credits, can be completed at either the downtown or the
Livingston Center campus. The remainder of the baccalaureate degree
requirements is completed on the EMU campus in Ypsilanti.)



Ferris State University: 3+1 Bachelor of Applied Science in Industrial
Technology Management. (All degree requirements can be completed in
Lansing.)



Grand Rapids Community College: 1+1 Surgical Technology Agreement (GRCC
students complete one academic year of LCC Surgical Technology requirements
before enrolling at LCC.)



Spelman College (Atlanta, GA): President Cunningham signed an updated
Spelman College Agreement to Cooperate. The original Atlanta University
Center Agreement, which included Clark Atlanta University, Morehouse College,
Morris Brown, and Spelman College, was signed in 1988.



University of Baltimore: B. S. in Business Administration, On-line (the request to
develop this agreement was initiated by the Masco Corporation so that its
employees could complete both associate and baccalaureate degrees on-line.)



A National Articulation and Transfer Network (NATN) Agreement was signed to
facilitate the transfer of LCC associate degree recipients into participating
baccalaureate degree granting colleges and universities. The NATNhelps students
of color identify opportunities for educational advancement and success at both
two- and four-year colleges. This relationship will allowed students earning an
Associate of Arts or Science degree with a 2.5 GPA to have a seamless transfer to
more than 200 colleges and universities.



LCC initiated articulation discussions with the following Historically Black
Colleges and Universities for specific program requirements and
scholarships/financial aid opportunities: Howard University, Xavier College,
Hampton University, Morgan State University, Tennessee State University, Fisk
University, Bowie State University and Norfolk University.
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Transfer Guides: A total of 577 transfer guides are available to students, and provide
transfer information to 54 different colleges/universities in over 100 different areas of
study. This total also includes 32 “3+1” transfer programs, which allow students to
complete three years of study at LCC before transferring to the bachelor degree-granting
college/university. All fourth year programs (of the 3+1 options) are offered in the
greater Lansing area.
On-line Transfer Programs. LCC students have access to 40 online bachelor degree
completion programs offered by six institutions---Franklin University, Capella
University, Upper Iowa University, University of Baltimore, University of Phoenix, and
Walsh College.
Availability of four-year college/university courses/programs on the LCC campus: Four
four-year institutions currently maintain offices and/or offer courses on the LCC campus:
Ferris State University, Lake Superior State University, Northwood University, and Siena
Heights University.
Distributive Learning
LCC has developed a quality distributive learning system that promotes the College’s
purpose and strategy. Distributive learning includes all types of alternative instructional
delivery, such as distance learning (i.e., virtual college, telecourses, teleconferencing),
learning centers (off-campus facilities that offer multiple classes), and learning labs that
employ electronic and paper delivery for self-paced coursework.
From Fall 2003 to Fall 2004, enrollment in on-line classes increased by 6.6%. Overall,
on-line and hybrid course enrollments increased from 12% to 13%. Enrollment also
increased at learning centers by 4% and at off-campus sites, including West Campus, by
154.9%.
To date, 572 College employees, the majority of whom are faculty, have completed
Michigan Virtual University training and certification. This formal certification assures
that faculty have the basic skills necessary to teach on-line effectively.
Web registration for Fall 2004 classes is at an all-time high of 73% compared with 67%
in 2003 and 60% in 2002. Web-based continues to be the avenue of registration that
LCC students prefer.
In addition, the College continues to move forward with the plan to consolidate its offcampus sites into learning centers. The consolidation of offerings into the Clinton County
Center in Fall 2002 accelerated an increase in enrollment from 120 (Fall 2000) to more
than 850 (Fall 2004).
The College has located space for a similar consolidation in the East Lansing, Haslett,
and Okemos areas and is negotiating a long-term lease. Also, the College has been
approached by the administration of the Howell Public Schools to have a presence in its
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new high school. Current plans call for an “LCC Wing” with a separate entrance and
designated parking.
Facilities
Substantial progress has been made toward completing the College’s Facilities Master
Plan first approved in 2000. The M-TEC portion of the West Campus facility was
completed in late Spring 2004, and the Business & Community Institute, machine shop,
welding, construction, and electrical programs moved into the new facility in June 2004.
The College held its grand opening of the West Campus on Monday, November 8, with
more than 700 people attending. The building will be fully operational for all
instructional programs by Spring 2005.
Work is progressing on schedule for the new Health and Human Services (HHS)
Building and a new Administrative Services Building. The HHS building will be home to
LCC’s 11 health career programs that prepare highly skilled workers for careers in
nursing, dental and other health programs beginning Fall semester 2005. The new
facilities will increase the space available for training with updated technology.
The new Administrative Services Building will consolidate administrative functions
formerly scattered throughout three different campus buildings. This consolidation will
yield operational efficiencies and take the Academic & Office Facility off-line and
available for sale. The Administrative Services Building is on schedule for completion in
June 2005.
Programming for vacated space in the Gannon and Arts and Sciences buildings has been
completed with construction to begin in January 2005 as facilities become vacated. In
addition, LCC has submitted a capital outlay request for $4.12 million to support 50% of
the cost of renovations planned for Gannon.
In September 2004, the Board of Trustees approved an energy master plan, a partnership
with Siemens Building Technologies to substantially update utility systems in all College
buildings. The $3.5 million investment over the next several years is guaranteed to save
$240,000 in utility costs beginning the first full year after equipment installation. The
Siemens partnership also includes support of College efforts to achieve Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design (LEED) certification for the West Campus facility.
LEED is a standard for high performance, sustainable buildings established by the United
States Green Building Council.
Several major maintenance projects were completed in the past year. Completion of these
projects serves to benefit students and College staff as the environment can play a key
role in impacting the learning process.



Renovations of Physical Science and Cell Biology labs in Arts & Sciences to
meet program growth
Renovations of Livingston County Center to convert two classrooms into one
large classroom for biology instruction
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Complete roof replacement of Dart Auditorium
Renovation and replacement of the Library circulation desk

In Spring of 2004, Lansing Community College’s Safety and Risk Management Team
was recognized by the American Heart Association for its Automatic External
Defibrillator (AED) program. LCC has made the ready availability of these lifesaving
devices a priority, with more than16 AED’s located in campus buildings currently, and
more to be installed at the West Campus once construction is completed.
Technology Infrastructure
LCC’s electronic campus reflects the importance of students having informationtechnology skills in addition to content expertise in any career pursuit. The other main
drivers of the electronic campus relate to increasing productivity via a self-service
framework and eliminating costs through a more unified infrastructure. The Information
Services and College Development (ISCD) Division has continued to advance the
electronic campus.


Collaboration Suite Release 2 was installed, providing staff and faculty with the
capability of conducting Web Conferencing. (Web conferencing is a tool that
allows individuals to share computer desktops with each other without being
physically in the same location.) This release provides faculty with a more
effective and collaborative means of communicating with students, and students
can now store files on-line, access an on-line calendar, and share documents with
faculty.



The implementation of a new timecard system, as well as a streamlined Faculty
Workload System, have ensured more timely and accurate payroll reporting.



The Oracle Student System is currently in a parallel mode having converted 5
years worth of data for 80,000+ students. The go live date for total
implementation is set for April 2005. The benefits of this system are:
o Students will be able to capture their work product during their time at
LCC and present it professionally via a web based format to future
employers.
o New students will receive a technology user ID, allowing them to apply
on-line for admission and register for classes without stepping foot on
campus.
o The entire application is web based and will allow staff to access the
system from anywhere, providing better service to students.



ISCD facilitated the selection process for a new course management system.
Several classes began using the Angel system in Fall 2004 with a projected 50
classes to be deployed by Spring 2005. All courses will be converted to Angel by
the Summer 2005 semester.
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The deployment of Cisco phones has provided departments with daily statistics on
volume of calls received, which has allowed for staffing changes and preventive
measures to be deployed to better serve students, faculty and staff.



Discoverer Reporting has been introduced and will provide staff and faculty with
detailed access to the Oracle data store. This product provides many functions for
the user to access the data without requiring IT assistance.



ISCD is involved in the planning stages of implementing Oracle’s i-Recruitment
module, which will provide the HR department and hiring managers with an online method of recruiting and evaluating potential new employees.



Prior to the implementation of the Technology Master Plan of 2001, ISCD
documented over 4,000 Microsoft Access databases that were being used in day
to day LCC business. Implementation of a HTMLDB product has allowed for the
migration of these unsecured, undocumented systems to a secure and documented
relational database that is more widely accessible to staff and faculty.



An on-line survey tool has been deployed to provide timely feedback from users
of College services. An on-line Evaluation of Instruction was piloted in Summer
2004 to replace the paper survey format of distribution within the classroom. The
on-line format is expected to generate a savings of $50,000.



LCC implemented “Pay for Use” for Student Printing in the Computer Labs and
Libraries. As part of a student’s tuition each. A student receives 150 credits for
printing per semester. This will save an estimated $80,000 per year.



As ISCD continues to implement the Oracle Infrastructure, the College has
undergone a security audit and is now in the process of formulating a security
framework to be deployed on campus.



ISCD has generated over $250,000 through reference clients and strategic
contracts that make use of ISCD’s Oracle expertise.



Facility and Scheduling programs are being updated to accommodate all of the
physical moves that will be occurring over the next several years. Both Famis and
Resource 25 software are being upgraded to provide a graphical user interface to
provide better reporting tools to enhance decision making and drive higher
utilization of campus space.



An infrastructure plan has been deployed to effectively increase storage while
consolidating servers and allowing for a disaster recovery plan to be realized.
Fiber has been connected to both Main and West Campus allowing us to provide
data redundancy and failover capability to achieve a higher overall availability of
all applications.
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New faculty portlets have been added for better communication with students, by
providing functions for sending announcements and sharing files between faculty
and students.



A Degree Navigator program was fully implemented. Students are now able to
track on-line their progress towards completing their degree. They also are able to
perform “what if” scenarios for considering other degrees and determining how
many courses would be transferable.



The Oracle Corporation invited ISCD to become a member of the Higher
Education Advisory Board. This Board provides direction to Oracle on future
software development efforts within higher education. LCC is one of seven higher
education institutions on this board and the only community college.

Alternative Energy
LCC, along with Michigan’s universities, have an opportunity to become involved in the
development of new curriculum, new degree programs, and collaborative industry
research and commercialization using new and alternative energy sources. New
programs in power electronics, alternative energy enabling technologies, and fuel cell
technology are just some of the opportunities available. To that end, the College’s
Alternative Energy Initiative envisions alternative energy as an approach to meeting
career and workforce development needs.


In 2004, LCC was the only community college to receive a $1,000,000 alternative
energy appropriation from the U.S. Department of Energy to support the
development of alternative energy components across a number of programs
within the Technical Careers Division, including Automotive Technology,
Residential Construction, Heating Ventilation and Air Conditioning, Land
Technologies, and Computer Aided Design. Funding will support the
development of an Alternative Energy Demonstration Site at the West Campus
for students, policy makers and business leaders to see alternative energy
applications.



In February 2004, LCC hosted U.S. Department of Energy Secretary Spencer
Abraham’s press conference announcing a nationwide series of regional
workshops on hydrogen. LCC co- hosted the first workshop in Lansing with the
DOE and NextEnergy in March.



LCC received another $50,000 grant from NextEnergy to disseminate the
Alternative Energy Technician curriculum to higher education institutions within
the State.



A $30,000 grant was received from CN Railroad to support the development of
alternative energy components of the Automotive and Transportation programs.
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A key partnership with Siemens will provide alternative energy instructional
equipment and assistance with curriculum development.



The College presented a session on its Alternative Energy Initiative and its
economic impact at the 2004 annual Association of Community College Trustees
meeting in October 2004. College staff have presented at numerous statewide
conferences sponsored by NextEnergy.

Non-Profit Leadership Development Initiative
Progress has been made on the development of a comprehensive program that serves the
community’s leadership-development needs in the non-profit and other community
leadership sectors. During the last year, meetings have been held with potential partners
and funders throughout the state, including the Mott Foundation, the Michigan Council of
Foundations and the Lansing State Journal. The Leadership Development Initiative will
be implemented when start-up funding has been obtained.
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CONTINUOUS IMPROVEMENT PROCESSES
A major focus of LCC’S strategic plan is to continuously improve programs, services,
and facilities to assure state-of-the-art performance. The College has institutionalized
organization-wide continuous improvement processes that systematically measure,
evaluate and improve the performance of (a) its instructional programs and (b) its
learning support and operational services.
Program Review
The College is in its fourth year of formal review of its instructional programs and is
currently engaged in the third year of an integrated program review process. The review
process examines, on a four-year cycle, community impact, employment opportunity,
return on investment (ROI), and student/employer/faculty satisfaction. It is supported by
(a) data that is accessible through the web-based College portal and (b) information
gathered by stakeholder surveys and program narratives. Each program reviewed submits
an action plan to address opportunities for improvement identified in the process. Annual
action plan updates are provided in years 2-4 of the four-year cycle.
Service Review
The College learning support and operational services are also in their fourth annual
review cycle, focusing on deliverables, performance measurement, budget, and
continuous improvement. Process improvements lead to important organizational
outcomes, such as quality of learning, retention, completion, stakeholder satisfaction,
utilization, cost, speed, and flexibility. A few of the accomplishments of the past year are
described below.
The College has deployed database applications that support the measurement process for
continuous improvement initiatives. For example, one application allows the President’s
Executive Leadership Team and Deans to provide updated information on their
objectives for achieving strategic plan initiatives.
A Technology Liaison Group, comprised of faculty and staff from all divisions, was
formed to assist with the process of implementing new and existing technology services,
such as the on-line timecard system. A subset of this group was charged with providing
feedback on financial and human resource products and/or system improvements.
Internal Controls
Working with outside auditors, the College has a comprehensive plan in place to
strengthen its internal controls. Three internal control reviews were conducted in the last
year regarding payroll procedures, information security and cash collections. The
College will work with Plante Moran in the next 12 months to assure that all
recommendations from the College’s financial audit are implemented in a timely manner.
Periodic progress reports will be provided to the Board of Trustees Audit Committee.
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AQIP
The College is in its third year of participation in the Higher Learning Commission’s
Academic Quality Improvement Program (AQIP). AQIP is the accreditation process –
based on the Baldrige National Quality Program – that replaces the traditional ten-year
North Central accreditation process. Critical to the College’s AQIP participation and
mandated in the strategic plan are three action projects: (1) Creating Continuous
Improvement Systems; (2) Creating an Electronic Campus; and (3) Reporting Results.
The College has submitted to AQIP three annual updates on these projects, the most
recent in September 2004. This year the College added a fourth action project: (4) A
Strategic Management Initiative, the goal of which is to monitor progress and increase
communication on all College initiatives related to the strategic plan. AQIP reviews of
the College’s action projects have been consistently positive.
Systems Portfolio

A key component of the College’s participation in AQIP is the development of a Systems
Portfolio, the process for which began this year. The portfolio describes the College’s
processes for accomplishing its mission and goals and will include responses to
approximately 150 questions regarding institutional context, processes, results and
improvements. The College will complete the portfolio well before its May 2005 due
date.
Annual Results Inventory

One of the College’s AQIP Action Projects is the Annual Results Inventory (ARI). The
ARI consists of three reports, with 66 measures, covering vital aspects of the College’s
performance: Financial Responsibility, Access, and Student Learning Outcomes and
Stakeholder Satisfaction. LCC has completed three annual cycles of the ARI. The 2003
ARI on Financial Responsibility was presented to the Board in November 2003. The
2003-04 ARIs on Access and Student Learning Outcomes and Stakeholder Satisfaction
were presented to the Board in Spring 2004. The 2004 ARI on Financial Responsibility
will be presented to the Board of Trustees in December 2004.
Employee Development and Recognition
Organizational Development

LCC strives to maintain and support a well-qualified, committed faculty and staff. For
example, the Organizational Development (OD) Department has developed many
training and professional development opportunities for faculty, staff, and
administrators. The delivery method of the OD Department offerings focuses on
accessibility, self-service, and accountability. The College's iLearning system consists of
117 self-paced, on-line courses, including 74 new courses in the past year. Registrations
for self-paced training since September 2002 have resulted in 7,781 enrollments. In
addition, faculty and staff can register in iLearning for 17 face-to-face trainings.
Registrations for face-to-face training resulted in 5,504 enrollments since September
2002. Since the iLearning system is accessible via the Internet, LCC employees can
access or register for a total of 134 self-paced or face-to-face training sessions anytime
and anywhere. (Note: These enrollment numbers are based on duplicated headcount.)
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Center for Teaching Excellence

In addition, the Center for Teaching Excellence (CTE), which is fully managed and
staffed by faculty, offers face-to-face training and professional development opportunities
for LCC’s faculty, including assistance in the effective use of technology in the
classroom. During the 2003-04 Academic Year, the CTE offered





2 twelve-week faculty development seminars (a total of 34 faculty attended);
8 Faculty Orientations (a total of 98 faculty attended);
39 Faculty Development Workshops (a total of 344 faculty attended); and
84 Instructional Technology Workshops (a total of 720 faculty attended).

In addition, 2,567 faculty visited the CTE to use its on-site resources.
Customized Training

Division leaders also sponsored customized training for their staff in such areas as
developing a curriculum (DACUM), Systematic Curriculum and Instructional
Development, Appreciative Inquiry, Human Performance Improvement, Core Business
Services Processes, the Application of Lean Concepts.
Michigan Virtual University

Over the past three years, 572 College employees have completed the Michigan Virtual
University/LCC Online Faculty Certification Training, which focuses on the basic skills
involved in teaching online. This six-week training is required for all faculty members
who are either currently teaching or planning to teach online courses.
Building Leadership Capacity

To ensure that employee and organizational development needs are met now and in the
future, the President charged an internal Building Leadership Capacity Task Force with
the following: (1) conduct an assessment of current employee development programs; (2)
determine unmet needs, with emphasis on leadership development, and analyze the
information received; and (3) develop recommendations for enhancing LCC’s employee
development offerings.
In its June report, the task force reported the following: LCC employees at all levels said
that they need additional development in specific competencies and more knowledge of
LCC processes and systems. They also need access to clear and comprehensive
information about the learning opportunities that are available to them. LCC has many
high-quality resources to meet these needs. However, there needs to be a comprehensive,
organized system for evaluating their effectiveness, analyzing employee and
organizational needs, planning for the future, and communicating employee development
opportunities and the benefits associated with them.
The task force proposed creation of a Learning and Leading Collaborative (LLC) to (1)
redevelop and/or design program content, with a focus on leadership competencies; (2)
develop and implement a comprehensive communication and implementation plan for all
LCC’s learning and leading programs; (3) coordinate, enhance and align learning and
leading programs and activities; and (4) promote competencies of high performers.
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President Cunningham supported the task force recommendations and formed a Learning
and Leading Collaborative Steering Committee comprised of 30 LCC employees
representing each Division and employee group. Program content and a communication
plan are expected to be developed early in 2005.
Valuing Diversity

To support and advance LCC’s commitment to fairness and equal opportunity, the
Executive Office launched a new intercultural-based project in November. This project
will focus on


Student Success: improving the coordination and implementation of support
services to increase students’ academic success and personal experience,
particularly of minority and international students, women students, and students
with disabilities;



Leadership Development: how equal opportunity, diversity and other campus
climate issues are experienced at LCC and how leaders and others can best
demonstrate the value of diversity within the College; and



Employment Processes: ensuring equal opportunity in the College’s hiring
process through an approach that balances legal compliance along with greater
flexibility in realizing the College’s commitment to diversity.

Employee Recognition

As part of the College’s ongoing efforts to respect and value its most valuable resource –
its employees – a recognition program was held again this year to highlight exemplary
College programs, accomplishments and the individuals who excel in contributing to the
growth and development of the institution.
Employee Initiative Fund

As part of the FY 2005 budget process, the Board of Trustees approved a $500,000
Employee Initiatives Fund. Specific uses of this non-recurring fund have not been
determined at this time. The newly formed Labor/Management Group and the Learning
and Leading Collaborative Steering Committee will provide recommendations on how
the funds will be used to benefit employees.
Community Connections
Critical to the College’s continuous-improvement process are its community connections,
which serve to advance the quality of life in the region and enhance the College’s
programs, reputation and credibility.
LCC executive leaders serve such organizations and entities as Lt. Governor John
Cherry’s Commission on Higher Education and Economic Growth, National Governors
Association, Capital Area United Way, Mayor’s Housing Task Force, Michigan
Education Trust, Ingham Regional Medical Center, Capitol National Bank, Lansing
Economic Development Corporation, MBI Corporation, Michigan Works Career
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Connection, Commission on Lifelong Learning of the American Council on Education,
MSU Rare Isotope Accelerator Advisory Committee, Partnership for Learning, Rotary,
Zonta International, Chambers of Commerce, RED Team, Superintendents Roundtable,
HOPE Scholarship, Lansing Regional Airport Authority, Small Business Association of
Michigan, Michigan Business Education Association, Capital Area Youth Alliance,
YMCA, Girl Scouts of Michigan Capital Council, the Lansing Exchange Club, and
Capital Area Health Alliance.
The opening of the West Campus presented numerous opportunities to strengthen
community relationships. Key organizations, businesses, and individual decision makers
have held meetings in and toured the new facility including Capitol National Bank, the
Regional Economic Development Team, K-12 Superintendents, and the Lansing Area
Hispanic Business Association. A November 8 grand opening celebration attracted more
than 700 community supporters and partners.
Legislative relations continue to be strengthened at the local, state and federal levels. The
College continues to maintain strong, favorable and productive relationships as evidenced
by:







The efforts of U.S. Senators Carl Levin and Debbie Stabenow and U.S.
Representative Mike Rogers in securing funding for LCC’s strategic initiatives,
including alternative energy and the health careers facility
Hosting a public hearing for the Cherry Commission at the new West Campus
Numerous campus visits and classroom presentations by local legislators
Sponsorship of the People Speak forum for congressional and community
candidates
The continued support of local legislators for LCC’s efforts to prevent the
Lansing Township DDA from capturing future LCC property tax revenue
Rep. Bruce Caswell’s support for a change in the Community College Act
regarding governance in the case of a tax district expanding through annexation

At Division levels, LCC’s involvement with the wider community continues to grow.
Faculty, staff and students have actively participated in community activities with such
organizations as the City of Lansing, Potter Park Zoo, RE Olds Transportation Museum,
Lansing Art Gallery and many others.
To help assure that the Clinton County Center continues to meet the needs of area
students and employers, a Clinton County Center Advisory Group comprised of
community leaders was created. The Group has met three times to help the College
identify key community issues, especially those related to workforce, education and
training. With this community input, LCC will be in the best position to provide the
programs and services that will benefit Clinton County students and employers.
Finally, LCC TV is now offering the community and students more in-depth and diverse
programming. Collaborations with WTVS, Detroit’s Public Television station, and local
business and community leaders have led to seven new programs that focus on business
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and public policy issues, political commentary, diversity, art, and leadership. In addition,
LCC-TV launched a new sports program and brought its most popular radio program to
television.
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APPENDIX

LCC 2003 STRATEGIC PLAN
SUMMARY
Strategic Driver: Financial Balance
Bring revenue streams nearer to equal contributions and more in line with state
norms.

Challenges:
1. Institutionalize the long-term plan to achieve financial balance.
2. Develop additional sources of revenue to offset declining state revenue.
3. Explore the feasibility of expanding the college’s tax-district boundaries to achieve
financial balance.

Approaches:
1. Institutionalize cost-recovery for the Business and Community Institute.
2. Leverage the College’s new technological infrastructure to absorb overhead through
partnerships with non-profit organizations and start-up small businesses.
3. Develop LCC Foundation revenues to match the percentages of total foundation
revenue achieved by leading community foundations.
4. Explore the feasibility of expanding the college’s tax-district boundaries to achieve
financial balance.

Strategic Driver: Equity and Competitive Compensation
Institutionalize equity among faculty and staff and pursue competitive
compensation; these challenges must be addressed within the context of maintaining
financial balance.

Strategic Driver: Maintain Comprehensive Community College
Approach
Maintain a comprehensive community college approach (general education, career
and workforce development, developmental education), with an emphasis on careers
and on user-level information technology skills.

Challenge: Meet Lansing-area priority career and workforce development needs, coordinating the work

of the General Education and Careers divisions, the Business and Community Institute, and the MTEC.

Approaches:
1. Implement the College’s facilities and technology-infrastructure master plans, which
include constructing the Delta Campus and M-TEC, Health and Human Services
building, and Administration Building; renovating the Gannon Vocational-Technical
building; and implementing a comprehensive web-based Enterprise Resource Plan
(ERP).
2. Develop “Areas of Priority Need,” which are automotive-related learning, healthcare learning, developmental education, financial assistance, and mathematics and
science.
3. Secure corporate sponsorship for the STAR Institute, and explore STAR2 with a
developmental education emphasis. Develop a sunset plan in the event that this
cannot be achieved.
4. Implement a comprehensive program that serves the community’s leadershipdevelopment needs in the non-profit sector.
5. Establish Lansing Community College as an alternative energy center with alternative
fuel technology integrated into the curriculum.

Strategic Driver: Continuous Improvement
Focus on continuously improving LCC’s foundational programs, services, and
facilities to assure state-of-the-art performance. The Board issued the following
challenge:

Challenge: Institutionalize organization-wide continuous improvement processes, driven by measurable
results.

Approaches:
1. Maintain and improve comprehensive continuous-improvement review processes for
all instruction and services, following the principles of Shewhart and Deming versus
an emphasis on generalized “excellence.”
2. Maintain the College’s active participation in the Academic Quality Improvement
Program (AQIP) to drive the College’s improvement efforts and to assure its
continued accreditation.

Strategic Driver: Local Priority
Focus on meeting the needs of the local tax-district, followed, in decreasing order of
priority, by: contiguous counties outside the local tax district, the State of Michigan,
and the nation.
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Lansing Community College
Board of Trustees

Resolution
Whereas, the Lansing Community College Women’s Resource Center first opened its doors to
the community in 1974 and their 30th Anniversary was celebrated on November 4, 2004;
Whereas, the Women’s Resource Center specializes in helping women, as well as men, improve
their futures and has touched the lives of countless students over 30 years;
Whereas, the Women’s Resource Center has funded approximately 10,000 students in the
history of the Center through scholarships for tuition, textbooks, transportation and/or childcare;
BE IT THEREFORE RESOLVED that the Board of Trustees recognizes the Women’s
Resource Center for their 30 years of outstanding, quality service to Lansing Community College
and the community and congratulates the Center on the recognition it has given to this
institution.
Adopted this 15th day of November 2004.
Lansing Community College Board of Trustees

_______________________________
Chris A. Laverty, Chairperson

_______________________________
Mark H. Canady, Trustee

_______________________________
Kathy G. Pelleran, Vice Chairperson

_______________________________
Rondy L. Murray, Trustee

_______________________________
Robert E. Proctor, Secretary/Treasurer

_______________________________
Thomas Rasmusson, Trustee

_______________________________
Timothy A. Brannan, Ph.D., Trustee

_______________________________
Paula D. Cunningham, President
Lansing Community College

Recognition of Biwako Kisen Company Partnership
with Lansing Community College

Lansing Community College’s long term partnership with the Biwako Kisen Co., Ltd. of
Otsu, Japan has produced outstanding overseas work study opportunities for LCC students.
The Japan Adventure and Japan Horizon program has honorably served the greater
Lansing Community for the past 23 years. Biwako Kisen’s financial support of LCC,
including underwriting of student experiences, faculty support, and institution
administration demonstrates their unwaivering committment. The company has advanced
the reputation of LCC, the City of Lansing and the State of Michigan. The following
options are offered to honor and recognize the Biwako Kisen Company and Dr. Tai Sung
Kim for their many contributions to the College.
Option 1
Naming Recognition
The College proposes dedicating a conference room in the Herrmann Conference Center
to the Biwako Kisen Company and Dr. Kim. The Herrmann Conference Center rests
beside a garden that includes a Japanese Maple donated on the occasion of the 20th
Anniversary of the Japan Adventure Program.
Option 2
Biwako Kisen - Dr. Tai Kim – Professorship in International Studies.
To honor and recognize the many contributions that Biwako Kisen and Dr. Tai Kim have
made to the success of the Japan Adventure Program and to acknowledge the international
honors Dr. Kim has received from the Japanese government, LCC proposes establishing
the Biwako Kisen – Dr. Tai Kim professorship in International Studies. The endowed
professorship would be created with a $250,000 endowed fund. Alumni and faculty of the
Japan Adventure Program would be asked to support the program.
Option 3
Japanese Garden
Establish a Japanese garden that will be dedicated to Mr. Shigematsu and Dr. Tai Kim for
their outstanding work in advancing international relations and globalization for our LCC
students through the Japan Adventure and Horizon programs.

November 10, 2004

TO:

Boardof Trustees

FROM:
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Attached is the 2004 year-end financial audit. It has been reviewed
by the Audit Committee. It is recommended by the Audit Committee
that the Board of Trustees accept the audit.
Attachment

ChrisA. Laverty,
Chairperson. KathyG.Pelleran,
ViceChairperson. Robert
E.Proctor,
Secretary
!Treasurer
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A. Brannan,
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L. Murray,Trustee. Thomas
Rasmusson,
Trustee
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October 29, 2004
To the Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College
Lansing, Michigan
In planning and performing our audit of the basic financial statements of Lansing Community
College for the year ended June 30, 2004, we considered the College’s internal control in order to
determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the financial statements
and not to provide assurance on internal control.
However, during our audit we became aware of certain matters that are opportunities for
strengthening internal controls and operating efficiency. The comments and suggestions regarding those
matters follow. This letter does not affect our report dated October 29, 2004, on the financial statements
of Lansing Community College or our other reports on internal control.
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #35 Implementation (Repeat Comment)
During the previous fiscal year the College implemented GASB Statement #35.

This

implementation process required the College to account for certain transactions differently primarily in
the areas of capital assets, summer session revenue and expense recognition, and elimination of tuition
scholarships to record revenue at net tuition. We recommend the College finalize review of these areas of
change and update the new Oracle system as appropriate to increase efficiencies in determining and
reporting these items under the new reporting model. This would also include combining certain plant
funds which will simplify accounting and review in these areas.

Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College
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October 29, 2004

Software System Implementation
Effective July 1, 2003, the College underwent tremendous changes implementing its new (Oracle)
software system. This transition has encompassed the entire College and has significantly altered the
operational procedures and methods which govern day-to-day operations. These changes have allowed
the College to implement new procedures which will improve financial reporting. In conjunction with
any software implementation of this magnitude, transitional issues are expected. The College’s staff has
identified many of these areas such as security and training.
Areas where implementation issues can be improved are as follows:

Payroll Approvals
During our testing we determined supervisors can approve employee time records without
opening the screen to actually review the individuals time record.
We recommend this option be eliminated to require all supervisors to review time records before
approving their time.
During our testing, we reviewed a report showing which payrolls were not reviewed by various
supervisors.
We recommend this report be reviewed monthly and appropriate follow up implemented to
ensure all supervisors are approving payroll timely.
During our testing we determined several employees who process payroll have access to master
payroll files and the ability to make changes.
We recommend master payroll access to individuals, be reviewed and limited to only those who
need to adjust payroll files. Changes to the master payroll access should be appropriately reviewed and
approved.

Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College
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October 29, 2004

Accounts Payable Vendors
During our testing of selected payable vendors we determined transactions requiring a (receiving
report, purchase order and invoice match) are not always processed correctly.
We recommend this area of the software system be specifically reviewed to determine the cause
and have this issue corrected.
Month-end Procedures
Numerous month-end procedures have changed with the implementation of the new system. The
accounting department has been updating their procedures.
We recommend specific month-end procedures be determined, documented and implemented in a
timely manner. This implementation process should include appropriate training where necessary. This
would include review of month-end reconciliations of cash, receivables and payables and other major
accounts for unusal items and comparison to the general ledger.
Journal Entries
Currently all journal entries not prepared by the Director of Accounting are reviewed by the
Director of Accounting. Entries posted by the Director of Accounting are not currently reviewed.
We recommend journal entries recorded by the Director of Accounting be reviewed monthly for
reasonableness.
Technology Security Audit
The College has contracted wit h a third party for a technology security audit. At the date of this
report, this engagement had not been completed.
We recommend recommendations, if any, from this report be addressed in a timely fashion.

Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College
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October 31, 2003

Property and Equipment Depreciation Records
The College implemented a new depreciation system during the current fiscal year. During this
conversion certain assets and lives were reviewed for reasonableness. In addition, the College currently
has several major ongoing construction projects. Upon completion, assets by function will need to be
determined and entered into the depreciation system.
We recommend a specific individual be assigned the responsibility to review this area throughout
the year and begin the process of properly allocating construction in progress.
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #40 “Deposit and Investment Risk
Disclosures”
Effective June 30, 2005, governmental entities will be required to expand their current disclosure
requirements addressing common risks of the deposits and investments. The disclosure requirements
apply to debt and an equity investment held directly by the entity or indirectly by investment advisors and
requires that a governmental entity disclose investment policies that are related to custodial credit risk,
custodial risk, concentration of credit risk, interest rate risk, and foreign currency risk. If the entity has
adopted no policy with respect to a particular risk, that fact should be part of the disclosure.
The College should revie w its investment policies to determine all common risks areas are
identified and the appropriate level of risk of each area is quantified.
We will review the status of these comments during our next audit engagement. We have already
discussed many of these comments and suggestions with various College personnel, and we will be
pleased to discuss them in further detail at your convenience, to perform any additional study of these
matters, or to assist you in implementing the recommendations.

Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College
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October 31, 2003

This report is intended solely for the information and use of Lansing Community College,
management, and others within the College, and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specified parties.
We appreciate the cooperation we received from your staff during our engagement and the
opportunity to be of service.
Very truly yours,

(J:\lm\2004\LCC)

LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
ADDITIONAL REPORTS REQUIRED BY
OMB CIRCULAR A-133
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

i

CONTENTS

Page

Report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting based on
an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards ..................................................................................................................... 1 - 2

Report on compliance with requirements applicable to each major program and
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 ........................................ 3 - 4

Schedule of expenditures of federal awards ................................................................................... 5 - 7

Notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards.......................................................................... 8

Schedule of findings and questioned costs.................................................................................... 9 – 10

Schedule of prior year audit findings .............................................................................................. 11

Corrective action plan ................................................................................................................... 12

ii

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS
Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College
Lansing, Michigan

October 29, 2004

We have audited the basic financial statements of Lansing Community College, Lansing, Michigan, and its
discretely presented component unit as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, which collectively comprise the
Lansing Community College’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated October 29,
2004. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States.
Compliance
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Lansing Community College’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts and grants, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of
our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
In planning and performing our audit, we considered Lansing Community College’s internal control over
financial reporting in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we
noted certain matters involving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider to be
a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention relating to significant
deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our judgment, could
adversely affect Lansing Community College’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data
consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. The reportable condition is described in
the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as item 2004-01.
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Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College

October 29, 2004

A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be material
in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal control
over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be reportable
conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be
material weaknesses. However, we believe the reportable condition described above is a material weakness. We
also noted other matters involving the internal control over financial reporting that we have reported to
management of Lansing Community College, in a separate letter dated October 29, 2004.
This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of trustees, management and
federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone
other than these specific parties.

Certified Public Accountants
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM
AND INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133
Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College
Lansing, Michigan

October 29, 2004

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of Lansing Community College with the types of compliance
requirements described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2004. Lansing
Community College’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditors’ results section of the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of Lansing Community
College’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on Lansing Community College’s compliance
based on our audit.
We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program occurred.
An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about Lansing Community College’s compliance with those
requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide a legal determination
on Lansing Community College’s compliance with those requirements.
In our opinion, Lansing Community College complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2004.
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October 29, 2004

Internal Control Over Compliance
The management of Lansing Community College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective
internal control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered Lansing Community College’s internal control
over compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test
and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.
Our consideration of the internal control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the
internal control that might be material weaknesses. A material weakness is a condition in which the design or
operation of one or more of the internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that
noncompliance with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants that would be material in
relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. We noted no matters involving the
internal control over compliance and its operation that we consider to be material weaknesses.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
We have audited the basic financial statements of Lansing Community College as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2004, and have issued our report thereon dated October 29, 2004. Our audit was performed for
the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole. The accompanying schedule of
expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by OMB Circular A-133
and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and, in our opinion, is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.
This report is intended for the information of the board of trustees, management and federal awarding
agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these
specific parties.

Certified Public Accountants
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/program or cluster

Federal
CFDA
number

U.S. Department of Education:
Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster:
Federal Supplemental Educational Opportunity Grant Program
Federal Work Study Program
Federal Pell Grant Program
William D. Ford Federal Direct Loan Program

84.007
84.033
84.063
84.268

Pass-through
entity
identifying
number

Total Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster

Federal
expenditures

$

432,309
524,193
9,424,134
12,898,793
23,279,429

TRIO - Student Support Services

84.042

316,827

CCAMPIS

84.335

64,558

Passed through Michigan Department of Education:
Vocational Education:
Perkins II Block
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track
Fast Track

84.048 043510 402115
033290 5301135
043290 5301131
043290 40294
043290 40295
043290 402913
043290 402919
043290 402933
043290 402941
033290 402963
033290 402966
033290 402970
033290 402974
043290 402975
043290 402976
043290 402989
043290 402988
033290 402996
033290 402995

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards

1,141,866
1,372
724
339
2,612
577
203
1,818
381
1,101
537
2,564
618
382
1,234
314
1,115
328
702
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/program or cluster

Federal
CFDA
number

Pass-through
entity
identifying
number

Federal
expenditures

U.S. Department of Education (Continued):
Passed through Michigan Department of Education (Continued):
Vocational Education (Continued):
Fast Track-NAEYC Early Childhood
Fast Track-WIDS
Fast Track-NDT Whitehead
Fast Track-C Programming
Fast Track-Mac Design
Fast Track-NUI Hot Labs
Fast Track-Early Childhood
Perkins Local leadership
Emerging Technologies
Emerging Technologies

84.048 043290 402928

043250 402515
033270 54128
043270 40275

$

1,334
305
534
525
529
645
780
18,566
819
3,645
1,186,467

Passed through Michigan Department of Education:
Improving Teacher Quality

84.367 030290 211

Passed through Michigan Department of Education:
Vocational Education Tech. Prep. (SLICE)

84.243 043540 401414

Passed through Michigan Department of Education:
English Literacy/Civics Education
Professional Development

84.002 021120 2003500482
84.002 021150 200280122

81,690

185,824

8,132
4,307
12,439

Passed through the Ohio State University:
FAME Grant
Total U.S. Department of Education

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards

84.333

6,178
25,133,412
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Federal grantor/pass-through grantor/program or cluster

Federal
CFDA
number

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services:
Passed through Michigan Department of Community Health:
MDMH/MH - Aging

93.778

Passed through Capital Area Michigan Works:
WIA Incumbent Worker Training

Pass-through
entity
identifying
number

Federal
expenditures

$

93.558

39,826

445,476

Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services

485,302

Department of Justice
Public Safety Partnership and Community Policing Grants

16.710

35,475

U.S. Small Business Administration:
Passed through Grand Valley State University:
Small Business Development Center

59.037

118,024

U.S. Environmental Protection Agency:
Passed through West Virginia University:
National Alternative Fuels Training Program

66.950

TOTAL EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards

93-035C-LCC

9,224

$ 25,781,436
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

NOTES:
1.

Basis of presentation - The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the grant
activity of Lansing Community College and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The
information in this schedule is presented in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and reconciles with the
amounts presented in the preparation of the financial statements, as follows:

2.

The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was $386,479. The value of loans outstanding
and loan guarantees which are included in the schedule of expenditures of federal awards have been
excluded from the threshold calculation.

3.

Of the expenditures presented in the schedule, the College provided amounts to subrecipients as follows:

Program title
U.S. Department of Education:
Passed through Michigan Department of Education:
Vocational Education Tech. Prep. (SLICE)
Pass-through grantor's number 43540 401414

Federal
CFDA
number

84.243

Expenditures

$

136,804
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results

Financial Statements
Type of auditors’ report issued:

Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:
• Material weakness(es) identified?

X

Yes

No

• Reportable condition(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weaknesses?

Yes

X

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted?

Yes

X

No

• Material weakness(es) identified?

Yes

X

No

• Reportable condition(s) identified that are not considered
to be material weakness(es)?

Yes

X

None reported

X

No

Federal Awards
Internal control over major programs:

Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance for major
programs:

Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be
reported with Section 510(a) of Circular A-133?

Yes

Identification of major programs:
CFDA Number(s)

Name of Federal Program or Cluster

84.007, 84.033, 84.063, 84.268
93.558

Student Financial Assistance Program Cluster
Temporary Assistance to Needy Families

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and
type B programs:
Auditee qualified as a low risk auditee?

$386,479
X

Yes

No
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Section II - Financial Statement Findings
Reportable Condition 2004-01 - Considered a material weakness
During the year, month end reconciliations of primary asset and liability accounts were not completed
in a timely manner. This resulted in year end adjustments to several accounts.
The College implemented a new computer system effective July 1, 2003. In addition the college
incurred employee turnover and key employees were out on leave during the year. As a result all new
procedures, reviews and changes in duties during the year were not fully implemented.
Recommendation: The College should complete documentation and implement all new procedures
including appropriate review of new procedures. These procedures should include specific month end
procedures.
Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs
None noted
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

No prior year audit findings noted.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
NOVEMBER 3, 2004
CONTACT PERSON: BARBARA LARSON
OVERSIGHT AGENCY: U.S. DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION

Lansing Community College respectifully submits the following corrective action plan for the year ended
June 30, 2004.

Auditor:

Maner, Costerisan & Elllis, P.C.
544 Cherbourg Drive, Suite 200
Lansing, Michigan 48917-5010

Audit Period : Year ended June 30, 2004
The finding from the June 30, 2004 schedule of findings and questioned costs are discussed below. The
finding is numbered consistently with the number assigned in the schedule.

Finding – Financial statement audit
Reportable condition considered a material weakness 2004-01.
Recommendation: The College should complete documentation and implement all new procedures including
appropriate review of new procedures. These procedures should include specific month-end procedures.
Action to be taken: We concur with the recommendation. The College has started to implement the above
recommendations and anticipate completion of this plan by December, 2004. The College is awaiting the final
report from its technology security audit which was not completed as of June 30, 2004. Recommendations for
improvements from this report will also be implemented as part of this plan.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
REPORT ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(with additional information)
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College
Lansing, Michigan

October 29, 2004

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of Lansing Community College and its
discretely presented component unit, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2004, as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the College's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on these basic financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit
also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for
our opinion.
In our opinion, the basic financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Lansing Community College and its discretely presented component unit, as of June 30, 2004,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows for the year then ended, in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
As described in Note 1 to the financial statements, Lansing Community College adopted the provisions of
GASB Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units, as of June 30, 2004.
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Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College

October 29, 2004

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 29,
2004 on our consideration of Lansing Community College’s internal control over financial reporting and our tests
of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grants. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with
this report in considering the results of our audit.
The management’s discussion presented on pages v through xiv, is not a required part of the basic
financial statements but are supplementary information required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board. We have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we
did not audit the information and express no opinion on it.
Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements of
Lansing Community College as a whole. The additional information identified in the table of contents is presented
for the purpose of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. This additional
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and,
in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Certified Public Accountants
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The discussion and analysis of Lansing Community College’s financial statements provides an overview of the College’s
financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2004. Management has prepared the financial statements and the related
footnote disclosures along with the discussion and analysis. Responsibility for the completeness and fairness of this
information rests with the College’s management.
Using this Report
In December 1998, the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) released Statement No. 33, “Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Nonexchange Transactions”, which modified the reporting of property tax revenue. The difference
would increase the amount recorded as a receivable at year end. In June 1999, GASB released statement No. 34 “Basic
Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis for State and Local Governments”. Changes in Statement
No. 34 require a comprehensive one-line look at the entity as a whole including capitalization and depreciation of assets. In
November 1999, GASB issued Statement No. 35, “Basic Financial Statements and Management’s Discussion and Analysis
for Public Colleges and Universities”, which applies these standards to public colleges and universities. The State of
Michigan has adopted these standards and therefore, has revised and issued the Manual for Uniform Financial Reporting for
Michigan Public Community Colleges, 2001.
The major changes from the fund basis financial statements presented by the College prior to FY 2003 and the “one-line look
at the entity as a whole” are as follows:
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø
Ø

New reporting standards-Statement of Net Assets, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Assets, Statement of Cash Flows
Recording of depreciation expense and accumulated depreciation in the Statement of Net Assets
Capitalizing all capital expenditures on the Statement of Net Assets instead of recording as an expense
Elimination of internal service charges and related expenses such as copy charges and maintenance fees
Allocation of Summer School revenues and expenses between fiscal years instead of deferring the entire session
Establishing an operating and non-operating basis of reporting whereby revenues that are charges for services
are recorded as operating revenues. Essentially all other types of revenue are non-operating or other revenue
Netting tuition and fees for scholarship allowances that were also reported as federal and state grant revenue

Component Unit
In May 2002, GASB released Statement No. 39, Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units.
Statement No. 39 requires that separate legal entities associated with a primary government that meet certain criteria are
included with the financial statements of the Primary Reporting Unit.
In compliance with this Statement, the Lansing Community College Foundation is reported as a component unit of the
College and its financial activities are presented separately from the rest of the College’s activities in the financial statements,
in separate columns headed “Component Unit” this year.
This annual financial report includes the report of independent auditors, management’s discussion and analysis, the basic
financial statements in the above referred format, notes to financial statements and additional information.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Highlights
The College’s financial position increased slightly during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2004, with a $240,479 increase in
total net assets. The three major categories of net assets changed very little, as shown in the graph below. Although
unrestricted net assets as shown here increased by approximately $1.2 million, from $33.6 to $34.8 million, the majority of
this is obligated for completion of the College’s facilities master plan. As part of the FY 2005 approved budget, the Board of
Trustees approved the use of $19,561,507 of unrestricted fund balances toward construction costs.
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The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Assets
One of the most important questions asked about the College’s finances is, “Is Lansing Community College as a whole better
off or worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets report information on the College as a whole and on its activities in a way that helps
answer this question. When revenues and other support exceed expenses, the result is an increase in net assets. When the
reverse occurs, the result is a decrease in net assets. The relationship between revenues and expenses may be thought of as
Lansing Community College’s operating results.
These two statements report Lansing Community College’s net assets and changes in them. You can think of LCC’s net
assets-the difference between assets and liabilities-as one way to measure the College’s financial health, or financial position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the College’s net assets are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or
deteriorating. You will need to consider many other nonfinancial factors, such as the trend in college enrollment, student
retention, condition of the buildings, and strength of the faculty, to assess the overall health of the College.
These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting
used by most private-sector institutions. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless
of when cash is received or paid.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Below is an analysis of the major components of the net assets of the College as of June 30, 2004 and 2003, with prior year
information shown to the right. The College decreased its cash position, part of current assets, as substantial progress was
made toward completion of the new Technical Training Center and the Michigan Technical Education Center (MTEC) in
Delta Township. In turn, the College’s capital assets, net of depreciation, increased substantially in FY 2004.
Net Assets as of June 30, 2004 and 2003(in millions)

2004
Current assets
Non-current assets
Capital assets, net of depreciation *
Other
Total assets

$

67.2

2003
$

111.7
9.0

80.3
80.4
22.5

$

187.9

$

183.2

Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Net assets
Invested in capital assets
Restricted
Unrestricted

$

19.3
58.9

$

11.5
62.2

Total net assets *

$

109.7

$

109.5

Total liabilities and net assets

$

187.9

$

183.2

74.7
0.2
34.8

75.7
0.2
33.6

* Capital assets and net assets 2003 have been restated for infrastructure assets (see note 9).

A comparison of fiscal year 2003 and 2004 operating results is provided on the following page. Operating expenses
vary between the two years because the State of Michigan’s accounting manual added a new expenditure category for
Information Technology effective for 2004. Expenditures now recorded as Information Technology may formerly
have been recorded within Instruction, Instructional Support or Institutional Administration categories.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operating Results for the Year Ended June 30, 2004 and 2003 (in millions)

2004
Operating revenues
Tuition and fees (net of scholarship allowance)
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Local grants and contracts
Sales and services of auxiliary activities
Miscellaneous
Total operating revenue
Operating expenses
Instruction
Information technology
Public services
Instructional support
Student services
Instructional administration
Operation and maintenance of plant
Depreciation

2003

$

17.7
25.8
3.8
1.6
2.0
1.3

$

17.6
22.0
5.5
1.6
2.1
1.8

$

52.2

$

50.6

$

33.7
6.3
0.5
13.1
31.3
13.5
10.8
8.0

$

37.0
0.8
21.5
26.8
11.9
13.9
4.9

Total operating expenses

117.2

116.8

Net operating loss

(65.0)

(66.2)

27.7
34.5
0.7

31.1
32.6
0.5

62.9

64.2

Other revenues
Capital grants and contracts

2.4

0.4

Net increase (decrease) in net assets

0.2

(1.6)

Nonoperating revenues
State appropriations
Property tax levy
Othe nonoperating revenues - net
Net nonoperating revenues

Net assets - beginning of year * (as restated)
Net assets - end of year

109.5
$

109.7

110.6
$

109.0
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operating Revenues
Operating revenues include all transactions that result in the sales and/or receipts from goods and services such as tuition and
fees. In addition, certain federal, state and private grants are considered operating if they are not for capital purposes and are
considered a contract for services.
Operating revenue changes were the result of the following factors:
Ø
Student tuition and fee revenue increased due to increases in tuition rates.
Ø
Federal grants and contracts consist of $23.3 million of federal financial aid. This is an increase of almost $4
million from 2003.
Ø
Sales and services of educational activities consist primarily of revenue generated by the College’s Business &
Community Institute. Revenues in this category were down slightly for the year compared to 2003.
Ø
Parking services makes up 62% of the revenue generated from the Sales and Services of Auxiliary Activities
The following is a graphic illustration of operating revenues by source for 2004 and 2003:
2004 Operating Revenues by Source
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Operating Expenses
Operating expenses are all the costs necessary to perform and conduct the programs and primary purposes of the College.
Although total operating expenses are up by approximately $700,000, many factors make it difficult to compare the two
years.
Ø
Instructional costs decreased by $3.3 million. Some of this decrease is attributable to the large number of
faculty retirements as part of the College’s Early Retirement Incentive Program (ERIP) concluded in 2004.
Ø
The new expenditure category for Information Technology includes costs formerly spread among instruction,
instructional support and institutional administration categories.
Ø
Student Services costs increased from $26.7 to $31.3 million, but much of this is attributable to a $4 million
increase in Federal financial aid for our students.
Ø
Institutional administration costs include $2.3 million in expendable restricted funds, primarily capital
expenditures against the College’s MTEC construction grant from Michigan Capital Works! When just the
general fund is considered, the College’s institutional administration costs decreased by approximately
$500,000 compared to 2003.
Ø
The College’s depreciation expense increased from $4.9 to $8 million. This is because many large, capital
projects are now online, including the Oracle implementation project and associated hardware, as well as
accounting for campus infrastructure.
The following is a graphic illustration of operating expenses by source:
2004 Operating Expenses
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Nonoperating revenues (expenses) are all revenue sources that are primarily non-exchange in nature. They consist primarily
of state appropriations, property tax revenue, investment income (including realized and unrealized gains and losses), and
grants and contracts that do not require any services to be performed.
Non operating revenue (expenses) changes were the result of the following factors:
Ø
Ø
Ø

A decrease of nearly 11% in state appropriations from 2003 to 2004
Property taxes increased approximately 5.3%
Investment income decreased due to the use of cash for construction, and adjusting investments to market
value.

The graphs that follow illustrate the distribution of nonoperating revenues (expenses) by source for 2004 and 2003:

2004 Nonoperating Revenue
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Statement of Cash Flows
Another way to assess the financial health of a college is to look at the Statement of Cash Flows. Its primary purpose is to
provide relevant information about the cash receipts and cash payments of an entity during a period. The Statement of Cash
Flows also helps users assess:
Ø
Ø
Ø

An entity’s ability to generate future net cash flows
Its ability to meet its obligations as they come due
Its needs for external financing

Cash Flows for the year (in millions)

2004
Cash provided (used) by:
Operating activities
Noncapital financing activities
Capital and related financing activities
Investing activities

$

Net increase (decrease) in cash
Cash beginning of year
Cash end of year

$

(58.3)
62.4
(33.4)
14.8

2003
$

(59.3)
63.2
3.1
1.7

(14.5)

8.7

28.2

19.5

13.7

$

28.2

The College’s liquidity decreased during the year, primarily due to paying contractors for construction completed. The
College’s ability to meet the current operational needs is still adequate, however.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Capital Asset and Debt Administration
Capital Assets
At June 30, 2004, the College had $111.7 million invested in capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation of $49.2
million. Depreciation charges totaled $8.0 million for the current fiscal year. Details of these assets for 2004 and 2003 are
shown below:

2004
Land
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Construction in progress
Total

2003

$

9.9
42.9
17.0
2.7
39.2

$

9.9
44.1
19.5
2.9
4.0

$

111.7

$

80.4

Major capital additions during the year were (in millions):
Ø
Ø

Furniture and equipment
Construction in process

$4.1 million
$37.3 million

The College has planned capital expenditures for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2005 at approximately $19.6 million.
Projects planned include completion of the MTEC and Technical Training Center, Health & Human Services Building,
Administration Building, and renovations to vacated space. More detailed information about the College’s capital assets is
presented in the footnotes to the financial statements.
Debt
At year end, the College had some $58.95 million in bond debt outstanding. The table below summarizes these amounts by
bond issue.

2004
1994 Improvement Bonds
2002 Building & Site Bonds
2003 Building & Site Bonds

$

2003

37,975,000
20,975,000

$

930,000
39,850,000
20,975,000

$ 58,950,000

$

61,755,000
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The College has two outstanding bond issues. The 2002 bond issue will be paid off in May of 2017, and the 2003
bond issue will be paid off in May of 2022
Economic Factors That Will Affect The Future
State appropriations dropped by nearly 11% in 2004 compared to the prior year. In addition, the College’s
employee benefit costs continue to rise. The College’s contribution to the Michigan Public School Employees
Retirement System (MPSERS) was 12.99% of payroll at June 2004. This contribution rate has increased by
1.88% for the current fiscal year, and is expected to continue to rise in 2005. Health care premium cost
increases have exceeded 18%. The College’s strategy to decrease its reliance on State appropriations, and the
successful passage of a one mill increase in 2001, has enabled quality instruction and services to students to
continue during these difficult times.
The College’s tuition rate remains near the bottom when compared to Michigan’s 27 other community colleges.
Effective Fall semester 2004, the College moved to contact hour pricing, a system now in place at most other
State community colleges. This pricing method more closely ties tuition revenues to the cost of instructional
delivery. Additional revenues from contact, or billing hour pricing, will help offset continued declines in State
appropriations.
Finally, rising energy costs affect all organizations. The College’s Facilities Master Plan construction will add
approximately 78,000 square feet of building space when all construction is completed and other buildings are
taken offline. The College’s’ emphasis on energy conservation through equipment upgrades and renewable
energy such as the geothermal system at the new West Campus will help offset the financial impact of rising
energy costs.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2004
Component
unit
Lansing
Community
College
Foundation

Lansing
Community
College
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Property taxes receivable
State appropriation receivable
Federal and state grants receivable
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenditures and deposits

$

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
STUDENT LOANS RECEIVABLE

13,705,379
40,158,356
534,885
4,955,142
5,072,876
2,385,042
83,344
261,339

$

593,824

67,156,363

2,811,395

8,611,456

2,631,982

46,868

PROMISES TO GIVE

71,659

BOND ISSUANCE COSTS

366,234

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - net of accumulated depreciation
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of accrued vacation
Current portion of debt obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued payroll and other compensation
Unearned revenue
Due to depositors
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
BOND PREMIUM
LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
ACCRUED VACATION
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Restricted fund activities
Loan programs
Non-expendable
Expendable - scholarships and awards
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes to financial statements.

179,105
2,038,466

111,689,443
$ 187,870,364

$

$

$

45,925
3,225,000
9,341,235
462,139
4,210,843
1,923,673
96,451

5,515,036

432,545

19,305,266

432,545

2,188,656
55,725,000
898,073
78,116,995

432,545

74,738,440
159,105
42,851

34,812,973

2,631,982
2,185,094
265,415

109,753,369

5,082,491

$ 187,870,364

$

5,515,036
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Component
Unit
Lansing
Community
College
Foundation

Lansing
Community
College

REVENUE:
Operating revenue:
Tuition and fees (Net of scholarship allowances of $9,368,015)
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Local grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
Sales and services of auxiliary activities
Miscellaneous
Gifts
TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE
EXPENSES:
Operating expenses:
Instruction
Information technology
Public services
Instructional support
Student services
Institutional administration
Operations and maintenance of plant
Depreciation
Foundation operations and fundraising

$

17,735,786
25,781,436
3,843,123
1,586,287
1,952,858
1,268,932
9,117

$

1,481
2,128,762

52,177,539

2,130,243

33,724,296
6,278,344
470,303
13,104,317
31,326,308
13,512,432
10,781,525
8,016,380
505,220

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

117,213,905

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

(65,036,366)

1,625,023

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
State appropriations
Property tax levy
Investment income
Interest on capital asset - related debt
Other
Payments to primary government

27,729,500
34,460,949
572,592
(18,444)
121,147

569,759

(600,896)

NET NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)

62,865,744

LOSS BEFORE OTHER REVENUES

(2,170,622)

OTHER REVENUES
Capital grants and contracts
NET INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
NET ASSETS:
Beginning of year - (as restated)
End of year
See notes to financial statements.

505,220

(31,137)
1,593,886

2,411,101
240,479

1,593,886

109,512,890

3,488,605

$ 109,753,369

$

5,082,491
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Component
Unit
Lansing
Community
College
Foundation

Lansing
Community
College

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Tuition and fees
Grants and contracts
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Collection of loans from students
Educational enterprise charges
Auxiliary enterprise charges
Contributions, gifts and other
Net cash provided (used) in operating activities

$ 16,527,976
16,884,183
(29,309,562)
(65,663,115)
49,173
1,952,858
1,268,932
9,117

34,094,396
11,002,025
(11,751,872)
1,910,093
(1,146,921)
(35,844)
28,310,538

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

62,382,415

Net cash used by capital and related financing activities
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Interest on investments
Purchase of investments
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH
CASH - Beginning of year
CASH - End of year

See notes to financial statements.

(110,233)

1,113,226

(58,280,438)

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Local property taxes
William D. Ford direct lending receipts
William D. Ford direct lending disbursements
PLUS loan receipts
PLUS loan disbursements
Student organization agency transactions
State appropriations
Payments to primary government

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of capital assets excluding capitalized interest
Principal paid on capital debt
Capital grants
Interest paid on capital debt

$

1,002,993

(229,604)
(229,604)

(29,719,282)
(2,805,000)
2,000,000
(2,856,041)
(33,380,323)

41,035,318
572,592
(26,827,092)

1,179,611
101,216
(1,891,103)

14,780,818

(610,276)

(14,497,528)

163,113

28,202,907

15,992

$ 13,705,379

$

179,105
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004
Component
Unit
Lansing
Community
College
Foundation

Lansing
Community
College

RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash provided by
(used in) operating activities:
Depreciation
Amortization of bond issuance costs
Amortization of bond premium
(Increase) decrease in assets:
Federal and state grants receivable
Accounts receivables (net)
Inventories
Prepaid assets and other current assets
Loans to students
Increase (decrease) in liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued payroll and other compensation
Accrued vacation
Capital grant deferred revenue
Unearned revenue
Net cash used in operating activities

See notes to financial statements.

$ (65,036,366)

$

1,625,023

8,016,380
17,478
123,001
(1,255,306)
(1,207,810)
35,621
546,644
49,173

(622,030)

1,263,822
(462,513)
(171,348)
(195,327)
(3,887)
$ (58,280,438)

$

1,002,993
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The basic financial statements of the Lansing Community College have been prepared in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applicable to public colleges and universities as described in
GASB Statement No. 35 and the Manual for Uniform Financial Reporting – Michigan Public Community
Colleges, 2001. The College follows the “business-type” activities model of the GASB Statement No. 35.
Business type activities are those that are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties for goods
and services.
Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989, generally
are followed to the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-sector guidance
for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation. The College has elected not
to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.
A.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

Effective July 1, 2003, the College implemented the provisions of GASB Statement No. 39, Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units. This statement requires the College to present financial
information for its component unit.
B.

Reporting Entity
Lansing Community College is a Michigan community college with its main campus located in Lansing,
Michigan. The College is governed by a Board of Trustees, consisting of seven members.
The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with criteria established by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board for determining the various governmental organizations to be
included in the reporting entity. These criteria include significant operational or financial relationships
with the College. Based on application of the criteria, the College has determined Lansing Community
College Foundation meets the criteria as a component unit.
Lansing Community College Foundation (Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt component unit of
the College. The Foundation acts primarily as a fundraising organization to supplement the resources that
are available to the College in support of its programs. The board of the Foundation is self-perpetuating
and consists of friends of the College. Although the College does not control the timing or amount of
receipts from the Foundation, the majority of resources, or income thereon, that the Foundation holds
and invests are restricted to the activities of the College by the donors. Because these restricted
resources held by the Foundation can only be used by, or for the benefit of, the College, the Foundation
is considered a component unit of the College and is discretely presented in the College’s financial
statements. The College provides certain support and facilities to the Foundation.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
B.

Reporting Entity (Concluded)
During the year ended June 30, 2004, the Foundation distributed $600,896 to the College for both
restricted and unrestricted purposes. Complete financial statements for the Foundation can be obtained
from the Administrative Office at 520 N. Capitol Avenue, Lansing, Michigan, 48901-7210.
Significant accounting policies followed by Lansing Community College are described below to enhance
the usefulness of the financial statements to the reader:

C.

Accrual Basis
The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting, whereby revenue is
recognized when earned and expenditures are recognized when the related liabilities are incurred and
certain measurement and matching criteria are met.

D.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consist of all highly liquid investments with an initial maturity of three months
or less.

E.

Investments
Investments are recorded at fair value, based on quoted market prices.

F.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (first-in, first-out) or market. Inventories consist of
expendable supplies held for consumption and resale.

G.

Accounts Receivable
Accounts receivable are stated at the amount management expects to collect from outstanding balances.
Management provides for probable uncollectible amounts through a provision for bad debt expense when
necessary and an adjustment to a valuation allowance based on its assessment of the current status of
individual accounts. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used reasonable collection
efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.
Changes in the valuation allowance have not been material to the financial statements and no allowances
are currently deemed necessary.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
H.

Property and Equipment
Capital assets purchased or acquired are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost.
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date received.
The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
lives are not capitalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of
the related fixed assets.
Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives as follows:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and other equipment
Infrastructure

40 years
5-20 years
10–20 years

Buildings and major building improvements are depreciated using a 10% salvage value. The College’s
capitalization policy is to capitalize individual amounts exceeding $5,000.
I.

Prepaid Expenditures and Deposits
Expenditures, such as insurance premiums, which are expected to be of benefit within the next fiscal
year are included in prepaid expenditures. Deposits paid for equipment not yet received are included in
prepaid deposits.

J.

Unearned Revenue
Revenues received prior to year-end that are related to the next fiscal period are recorded as unearned
revenues. These consist of approximately $1,130,000 of unearned revenue on the summer semester,
which began on June 7, 2004 and ends on August 2, 2004 and $794,000 related primarily to the
restricted funds received in excess of expenditures incurred.

K.

Internal Service Activities
Both revenue and expenses related to internal service activities including print shops, office equipment,
maintenance, telecommunications, and institutional computing have been eliminated.

L.

Retirement Plan
Substantially all of the College's employees participate in the Michigan Public School Employees'
Retirement System.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
M.

Property Taxes
Property taxes levied by the College are collected by various municipalities and periodically remitted to the
College. The taxes are levied as of July 1 and December 1 and are due upon receipt of the billing by the
taxpayer and become a lien on the first day of the levy year. The actual due dates are September 14 and
February 14, after which time the bills become delinquent and penalties and interest may be assessed by
the collecting entity. Property tax revenues are recognized when levied to the extent that they result in
current receivables. Property taxes receivable are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectibles.
For the year ended June 30, 2004, the College levied 3.8544 mills per $1,000 of assessed valuation for
general operations.

N.

Gifts and Pledges
Gifts are recorded when received and pledges are recorded when it is determined that the gift is probable
of collection at its net present value.

O.

Accrued Vacation
Accrued vacation represents the accumulated liability to be paid under the College’s vacation pay policy.
Under the College’s policy, employees earn vacation time based on time of service with the College.

P.

Long-term Obligations
In the College’s financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as
liabilities on the balance sheet. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs and the
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the old debt, are deferred and
amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Concluded)
Q.

Unrestricted Net Assets
The College has designated the use of unrestricted net assets as follows:

Future capital projects
Auxiliary activities
Designated for on-campus activities
Designated for technology
Encumbrances
Unrestricted and undesignated
Total unrestricted net assets
R.

$

21,725,514
4,393,226
255,708
1,000,000
680,527
6,757,998

$

34,812,973

Use of Estimates
The process of preparing basic financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires the use of estimates and assumptions regarding certain types of assets, liabilities,
revenues, and expenditures. Such estimates primarily relate to unsettled transactions and events as of the
date of the financial statements. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results may differ from estimated
amounts.

S.

Foundation Reporting
The Foundation is a private nonprofit organization that reports under FASB standards, including FASB
Statement No. 117, Financial Reporting for Not-for-Profit Organizations. As such, certain revenue
recognition criteria and presentation features are different from GASB revenue recognition criteria and
presentation features. No modifications have been made to the Foundation’s financial information in the
College’s financial reporting entity for these differences.

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS
The College’s deposits and investments are included on the balance sheet under the following
classification:

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Long-term investments
Total

$

13,705,379
40,158,356
8,611,456

$

62,475,191
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)
The above amounts are classified by Governmental Ac counting Standards Board Statement No. 3 in the
following categories:

Bank deposits (checking accounts, savings accounts and
certificates of deposit)
Investments in securities and similar vehicles
Petty cash and cash on hand
Total

$

13,681,973
48,769,812
23,406

$

62,475,191

Deposits
Deposits at June 30, 2004 were reflected in the accounts of the bank (without recognition of checks
written but not yet cleared, or of deposits in transit) at $9,178,446. Of this amount, $100,000 was
covered by federal depository insurance and $9,078,446 was uninsured and uncollateralized for the year
ended June 30, 2004.
The College believes that due to the dollar amounts of cash deposits and the limits of FDIC insurance, it
is impractical to insure all bank deposits. As a result, the College evaluates each institution it deposits
College funds with and assesses the level of risk of each institution; only those institutions with an
acceptable estimated risk level are used as depositories.
The carrying amount of deposits for the Foundation, a discreetly presented component unit, was
$179,105 and the bank balance was $188,124. Of the bank balance, $100,000 was covered by federal
depository insurance. The remaining balance of $88,124 uninsured and uncollateralized for the year
ended June 30, 2004.
Investments
The College is authorized by Michigan Public Act 331, as amended through 1997, and by resolution of
the Board of Trustees to invest surplus monies in U.S. Treasury bonds, bills and notes, mutual funds,
certain commercial paper and investment pools that are composed of authorized investment vehicles.
The College’s investments are categorized below to give an indication of the level of risk assumed by the
College at June 30, 2004. Risk Category 1 includes those investments that meet any one of the following
criteria:
a.
b.
c.

Insured
Registered
Held by the College or its agent
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Concluded)
Risk Categories 2 and 3 include investments that are neither insured nor registered. Category 2 includes
investments that are held by the counterpart’s trust department (or agency) in the College’s name.
Category 3 includes investments held by:
a.
b.

The counterpart or
The counterpart’s trust department (or agent) but not in the College’s name

Investments at fair value at June 30, 2004 are categorized as follows:

Category
U.S. government securities
Obligation pooled funds U.S. securities
Public Funds Investment Trust

1
Uncategorized
Uncategorized

Total

$

18,230,109
21,555,983
8,983,720

$

48,769,812

The Foundation is not subject to Michigan Public Act 331 and therefore invests primarily in equities and
bonds in accordance with the Foundation’s investment policies.
The Foundations investments at fair value at June 30, 2004 are categorized as follows:

Category
Pooled funds investment trust
Charitable remainder trust
Pooled equity funds
Pooled funds U.S. securities
Total
Short-term investments
Long-term investments

Uncategorized
2
2
1

$

55,434
82,423
3,107,632
1,424,959

$

4,670,448

$

2,038,466
2,631,982

$

4,670,448
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
The following table presents the changes in the various fixed asset class categories for the year ended
June 30, 2004 as follows:
Balance
July 1, 2003
(as restated)
Assets not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

$

9,849,790
39,193,384

13,882,708

37,340,425

2,179,959

49,043,174

Capital assets:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

69,013,208
35,767,555
3,204,561

385,109
3,775,141

337,431

69,060,886
39,542,696
3,204,561

Total depreciable
capital assets

107,985,324

4,160,250

337,431

111,808,143

Total capital assets

121,868,032

41,500,675

2,517,390

160,851,317

24,960,811
16,240,147
281,967

1,552,798
6,275,087
188,495

337,431

26,176,178
22,515,234
470,462

337,431

49,161,874

Subtotal
Capital assets, net

41,482,925
$

80,385,107

$

$

Balance
June 30, 2004

2,179,959

Accumulated depreciation:
Buildings and improvements
Furniture and equipment
Infrastructure

$

Deletions

37,340,425

Total non-depreciable
capital assets

9,849,790
4,032,918

Additions

8,016,380

$

$

$ 111,689,443
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2004 was as follows:
Beginning
balance
Bonds payable

$ 61,755,000

Accrued vacation
Total long-term
liabilities

Additions
$

1,115,346

$ 62,870,346

Ending
balance

Reductions
$ 2,805,000

$

171,348

$

$ 2,976,348

$

Current
portion

58,950,000

$ 3,225,000

943,998

45,925

59,893,998

$ 3,270,925

The following is a summary of long-term obligations for the College for the year ended June 30, 2004:

2002 building and site bonds due in installments of $1,875,000 to $3,700,000
from May 1, 2004 to May 1, 2017 with interest at 3.5% to 5.5%.

$ 37,975,000

2003 building and site and refunding bonds due in installments of $690,000
to $1,545,000 from May 1, 2005 to May 1, 2022 with interest at 2.0% to
5.0%.

20,975,000

Total bonded debt
Accrued vacation
Total long-term liabilities

58,950,000
943,998
$ 59,893,998
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 – LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Concluded)
Current maturities at June 30, 2004 are as follows:

Fiscal year ending
June 30,
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009
2010-2014
2015-2019
2020-2022
Total

Principal
$

3,225,000
3,510,000
3,790,000
3,990,000
4,220,000
19,665,000
16,575,000
3,975,000

$ 58,950,000

Interest
$

Total

2,697,832
2,595,832
2,490,919
2,354,468
2,206,419
8,391,003
3,059,314
384,814

$

5,922,832
6,105,832
6,280,919
6,344,468
6,426,419
28,056,003
19,634,314
4,359,814

$ 24,180,600

$

8,313,060

Interest is payable semi-annually at rates ranging from 2.0% to 5.5%. The principal and interest are
payable from designated property tax levies. Certain bonds are callable at par and accrued interest plus a
premium. Total interest charged to expense for the year ended June 30, 2004 was $18,444. This amount was
reduced by interest capitalized in relation to various construction projects which amounted to $2,805,821.
In prior years, the College defeased certain general obligation bonds by placing the proceeds of new
bonds in an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old bonds. Accordingly, the
trust account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the College’s financial statements.
At June 30, 2004, $4,800,000 of bonds outstanding are considered defeased.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 5 - EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEM - DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
Plan Description - The College contributes to the statewide Michigan Public School Employees’
Retirement System (MPSERS), a cost sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the
twelve member board of the MPSERS. The MPSERS provides retirement benefits and postretirement benefits for
health, dental and vision. The MPSERS was established by Public Act 136 of 1945 and operated under the
provisions of Public Act 300 of 1980, as amended. The MPSERS issues a publicly available financial report that
includes financial statements and required supplementary information for MPSERS. That report may be obtained
by writing to Michigan Public School Employees Retirement System, 7150 Harris Drive, P.O. Box 30673,
Lansing, Michigan 48909-8103 or by calling (517) 322-6000.
Funding Policy - Member Investment Plan (MIP) members enrolled in MIP prior to January 1, 1990
contribute a permanently fixed rate of 3.9% of gross wages. The MIP contribution rate was 4.0% from January
1, 1987, the effective date of the MIP, until January 1, 1990 when it was reduced to 3.9%. Members first hired
January 1, 1990 or later and returning members who did not work between January 1, 1987 through December
31, 1989 contribute at the following graduated permanently fixed contribution rate: 3% of the first $5,000; 3.6%
of $5,001 through $15,000; 4.3% of all wages over $15,000.
Basic Plan members make no contributions. For a limited period ending December 31, 1992, an active
Basic Plan member could enroll in the MIP by paying the contributions that would have been made had enrollment
occurred initially on January 1, 1987 or on the date of hire, plus interest. MIP contributions at the rate of 3.9% of
gross wages begin at enrollment. Market rate interest is posted to member accounts on July 1st on all MIP
monies on deposit for 12 months. If a member leaves MPSERS service and no pension is payable, the member's
accumulated contribution plus interest, if any, are refundable.
The College is required to contribute the full actuarial funding contribution amount to fund pension
benefits, plus an additional amount to fund retiree health care benefit amounts on a cash disbursement basis. The
rate for the year ended June 30, 2004 was 12.99% of payroll. The contribution requirements of plan members
and the College are established and may be amended by the MPSERS Board of Trustees. The College
contributions to MPSERS for the year ended June 30, 2004, 2003 and 2002 were $5,481,896 $5,468,016, and
$4,841,748, respectively, equal to the required contribution for each year.
The College is not responsible for the payment of retirement benefits, which is the responsibility of the
State of Michigan.
Other post employment benefits - Under the MPSERS’ Act, all retirees have the option of continuing
health, dental, and vision coverage.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - OPTIONAL RETIREMENT PROGRAM - DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN
Plan Description - The College has adopted the Lansing Community College Optional Retirement Plan
(ORP) under Code Section 403(A). This defined contribution plan is administered by the College and provides
retirement benefits to participants. The ORP was established Pursuant to Public Act No. 296 of 1994 and permits
full-time faculty and administrative staff of the College to elect an optional retirement plan in lieu of coverage
under the Michigan Public Schools Retirement System (“MPSERS”).
Funding Policy - The contribution requirements of plan members and the College are established by the
plan document as 4.3% and 12.0% of MPSERS compensation, respectively. Institutional plan contributions will
only be made for participants who have authorized the required participant plan contribution. Participant
contributions are fully vested and non-forfeitable when made. Institutional contributions vest after 2 years of
continuous full-time service as interpreted under MPSERS guidelines. The participant and College contributions to
ORP for the year ended June 30, 2004 were $227,420 and $636,477 and for June 30, 2003 were $208,696 and
$582,658 and for June 30, 2002 were $227,226 and $510,282, respectively.

NOTE 7 – RISK MANAGEMENT
The College is exposed to various risks of loss related to property loss, errors and omissions, employee
injuries (workers’ compensation), as well as medical benefits provided to employees. The College participates in
the Middle Cities Risk Management Pool for claims relating to auto, property, and liability; the College is separately
insured for medical benefits provided to employees’ claims.
The Middle Cities Risk Management Pool program operates as a claims servicing pool for amounts up to
member retention limits, and operates as a common risk-sharing management program for losses in excess of
member retention amounts. Although premiums are paid annually to the Pool, which the Pool uses to pay claims
up to the retention limits, the ultimate liability for those claims remains with the College. The College has
purchased reinsurance should any claims exceed the retention limits.

NOTE 8 – COMMITMENTS, CONTINGENCIES AND CAPITAL OUTLAY
There are various lawsuits in which the College is a defendant. It is the opinion of College officials that
the potential claims in excess of insurance coverage resulting from the remaining litigation would not have a
material effect on the financial statements.
The College has numerous construction, renovation, capital improvement projects and a management
information system implementation project in process at June 30, 2004. Total future commitments related to
these projects approximates $37,500,000.
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT
Net assets as of June 30, 2004 have been restated to record additional infrastructure assets in the amount
of $2,922,594 net of depreciation. The net effect is to increase beginning net assets and net capital assets by
$2,922,594.

Net assets at June 30, 2003 as previously reported
Prior period adjustment

$ 106,590,296
2,922,594

Net assets at June 30, 2003 as restated

$ 109,512,890
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ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2004

Combined
total

General
fund

Auxiliary
activities
fund

Designated
fund

Expendable
restricted
fund

Student
loan
fund

Plant
fund

Agency
fund

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Property taxes receivable
State appropriation receivable
Federal and state grants receivable
Accounts receivable
Inventories
Prepaid expenditures and deposits
Due from (due to) other funds

$

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS
LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS
STUDENT LOANS RECEIVABLE

$

7,197,086
9,072,281
534,885
4,955,142

$

$

$

$ 313,690

$

294,506

TOTAL PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

$

1,500

229,094
83,344

204,370
(16,053,575)

2,168
(13,952)

4,132,731

(3,421,266)

67,156,363

7,771,631

282,722

4,445,169

1,651,610

8,611,456

8,611,456

(317,707)

15,525,505

54,801
148,264

(4,017)

52,804,683

204,565

46,868

366,234

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT:
Land and improvements
Construction in progress
Buildings and improvements
Equipment
Infrastructure
Allowance for depreciation

6,193,103
31,086,075

5,072,876
1,861,442

46,868

BOND ISSUANCE COSTS

TOTAL ASSETS

13,705,379
40,158,356
534,885
4,955,142
5,072,876
2,385,042
83,344
261,339

366,234

9,849,790
39,193,383
69,060,886
39,542,696
3,204,561
(49,161,873)

9,849,790
39,193,383
69,060,886
39,542,696
3,204,561
(49,161,873)

111,689,443

111,689,443

$ 187,870,364

$ 16,383,087

$ 282,722

$ 4,445,169

$ 1,651,610

Combined
total

General
fund

Designated
fund

Auxiliary
activities
fund

Expendable
restricted
fund

$

42,851

$ 164,860,360

$ 204,565

Plant
fund

Agency
fund

Student
loan
fund

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Current portion of accrued vacation
Current portion of debt obligations
Accounts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued payroll and other compensation
Unearned revenue
Due to depositors
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES
BOND PREMIUM
LONG-TERM DEBT OBLIGATIONS
ACCRUED VACATION
TOTAL LIABILITIES
NET ASSETS:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Restricted fund activities
Loan programs
Unrestricted
TOTAL NET ASSETS
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

$

45,925
3,225,000
9,341,235
462,139
4,210,843
1,923,673
96,451
19,305,266

$

45,925
1,730,747

$

$
27,014

$
51,943

4,139,626
1,130,191

$

$

$
3,225,000
6,795,611
462,139

699,023

36,897
71,217

793,482
96,451

7,046,489

27,014

51,943

1,492,505

10,482,750

2,188,656

2,188,656

55,725,000

55,725,000

898,073

898,073

78,116,995

7,944,562

27,014

51,943

1,492,505

68,396,406

74,738,440

204,565

204,565

74,738,440

159,105
42,851
34,812,973

159,105
8,438,525

255,708

4,393,226

109,753,369

8,438,525

255,708

4,393,226

159,105

$ 187,870,364

$ 16,383,087

$ 282,722

$ 4,445,169

$ 1,651,610

42,851
21,725,514

$

42,851

96,463,954

42,851

$ 164,860,360

$ 204,565
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENSES, TRANSFERS, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Combined
total
REVENUE:
Operating revenue:
Tuition and fees (net of scholarship
allowance of $9,368,015)
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Local grants and contracts
Sales and services of educational activities
Sales and services of auxiliary activities
Miscellaneous

$ 17,735,786
25,781,436
3,843,123
1,586,287
1,952,858
1,268,932
9,117

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

52,177,539

EXPENSES:
Operating expenses:
Instruction
Information technology
Public services
Instructional support
Student services
Institutional administration
Operations and maintenance of plant
Depreciation expense

117,213,905

OPERATING INCOME (LOSS)

(65,036,366)

Combined
total

$ 288,865

1,154,466
1,163,467

724,053

(9,368,015)

(9,368,015)

(9,368,015)

1,012,918

1,268,932

30,128,988

33,096,846
6,269,941
300,886
11,929,148
9,781,080
10,068,137
7,371,622

2,190

59,425

115,064
1,033
840,452
118,655

270,346
986,051

565,835
8,403
54,353
1,174,136
29,776,225
2,339,589

78,817,660

Elimination

$ 27,729,500 $
34,460,949
572,592
(18,444)
121,147

General
fund
$ 27,729,500
34,460,949
527,542

(2,170,622)

13,035,047

1,077,394

1,315,822

(64,476)

(46,890)

Auxiliary
activities
fund

Designated
fund
$

$

26,220

11,426,283

(3,789,553)

(26,220)

(11,426,283)

Expendable
Restricted
fund

Student
loan
fund
$

Plant
fund
$
45,050
(18,444)
121,147
147,753

(64,476)

(46,890)

(3,789,553)

(26,220)

(11,278,530)

(26,220)

(11,278,530)

2,411,101

240,479

240,479
109,512,890
$ 109,753,369

26,220

33,918,541

$

2,411,101

TRANSFERS IN (OUT)

NET ASSETS - End of year

$

3,409,903
8,016,380

(49,682,944)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE OTHER REVENUES

NET ASSETS - Beginning of year, as restated

$

Plant
fund

7,270

29,134,716

62,717,991

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS

$
25,781,436
3,843,123
431,821
65,338

Student
loan
fund

1,268,932

62,865,744

INCREASE IN NET ASSETS

$

Expendable
restricted
fund

1,847

NET NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)

OTHER REVENUES:
Capital gifts and grants

Auxiliary
activities
fund

Designated
fund

$ (9,368,015) $ 26,814,936

33,724,296
6,278,344
470,303
13,104,317
31,326,308
13,512,432
10,781,525
8,016,380

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES):
State appropriations
Property tax levy
Investment income
Interest on capital asset - related debt
Other

Elimination

General
fund

$

13,035,047

(64,476)

(46,890)

(1,378,452)

(15,521,821)

(133,138)

(104,255)

1,379,929

(2,486,774)

(197,614)

(151,145)

1,477

10,925,299

453,322

4,544,371

$ 8,438,525

$ 255,708

$ 4,393,226

14,379,285
(26,220)

3,100,755

157,628

69,071

93,363,199

$ 159,105

$ 42,851

$ 96,463,954
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LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
DETAILS OF AUXILIARY ACTIVITIES FUND
YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2004

Expenditures

Fund
balance
07/01/03
Food operations

$

Parking facility
Book service
$

568,891

Salaries
and
wages

Revenues
$

210,551

Fringes,
supplies
and
expenses

$

108,972

$

48,733

3,907,378

791,278

275,667

581,890

68,102

267,103

1,358

299,202

4,544,371

$ 1,268,932

$

385,997

$

929,825

Transfers
in (out)
$

Revenues
over (under)
expenditures
and
transfers
$

(104,255)

$ (104,255)

$

52,846

Fund
balance
06/30/04
$

621,737

(170,534)

3,736,844

(33,457)

34,645

(151,145)

$

4,393,226
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ADMINISTRATIVE APPOINTMENTS
1.

Name:

JaNice Pitts-Moore

Position:

Department Chairperson

Dept/Div:

Construction & Maintenance Technologies
Technical Careers

Education:

M.A., Michigan State University, 1984
B.A., Michigan State University, 1982

Experience:

Executive Director, Career Services (2002-present)
Michigan Virtual University
Program Director, Michigan Occupational Information
System (1996-2002)
Ingham Intermediate School District
Coordinator, Career Assessment Services (1984-1996)
Ingham Intermediate School District

2.

Effect. Date:

October 25, 2004

Name:

Anita Evans

Position:

Employment Manager

Dept/Div:

Human Resources
Administrative Services

Education:

M.A., Eastern Michigan University, 2000
B.A., Eastern Michigan University, 1996

Experience:

Human Resources Representative (2001-present)
Central Michigan University
Employment Compensation Administrator (2000-2001)
Central Michigan University
HR Assistant/Intern (2000)
City of Ann Arbor

Effect. Date:

December 1, 2004

LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
BOARD OF TRUSTEES
October 18, 2004
Regular Meeting
Unadopted Meeting Minutes
CALL TO ORDER BY CHAIRPERSON
The meeting was called to order at 6:05 p.m.
ROLL CALL BY SECRETARY TO THE BOARD
Present: Canady, Laverty, Murray, Pelleran, Proctor
Absent: Brannan, Rasmusson
Trustee Rasmusson arrived at 6:07 p.m.
ADDITIONS/DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda.
LIMITED PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING AGENDA ITEMS
There were no comments from the public.
CHAIRPERSON AND BOARD MEMBER REPORTS
Chairperson Laverty
Board Election Date Resolution
Chairperson Laverty stated that the September meeting minutes reflect that the Board was to
hold a public hearing this evening. He asked Mr. Rich Howard to provide the Board an
update on this issue.
Mr. Howard stated that since the September Board meeting Ms. Norma Mendez and he met
with Mr. Mike Bryanton, city and township clerks. He also met with legal counsel to further
clarify the election process that is required in order to be in compliance with selecting an
election date. Mr. Howard said the Board must first pass a resolution this evening that
specifically mentions an election date which would call for a public hearing. The Board would
then hold a public hearing in November and a resolution would then need to be passed to
hold the election.
IT WAS MOVED by Trustee Pelleran and supported by Trustee Canady to pass the
resolution calling for a public hearing on November 15, 2004 regarding the November oddyear election date for the Lansing Community College Board of Trustees.
Chairperson Laverty clarified that the public hearing will be held in November to entertain
public comment regarding the newly selected election date.
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There was no discussion.
Roll call vote:
Ayes: Canady, Laverty, Murray, Pelleran, Proctor, Rasmusson
Nays: None
Absent: Brannan
Motion carried.
Strategic Plan
Chairperson Laverty distributed the strategic plan and the executive summary that the Board
previously received in their Board Briefing books (these materials are on file with the official
Board materials.) He wanted to make sure that everyone had the same information as the
Board proceeds with discussing the strategic plan.
Chairperson Laverty read out loud portions of the Executive Summary. He asked that two
special Board meetings, prior to the end of year, be scheduled to dedicate time to the
Strategic Plan. The purpose will be to review what has been implemented from the plan and
determine how the institution should go forward.
Policy Governance
The November 29 date that was previously sent out will no longer work due to scheduling
conflicts. He announced that December 6 is the new date to look at for scheduling the next
development session.
Other
Chairperson Laverty reported on the following other items:
•

September 28 - Distinguished Alumni Hall of Fame event. He commended President
Cunningham, Judge Charles Filice, and Ms. Sue Fisher for their work with the event.
He encouraged everyone to view the display of the distinguished alumni located in the
Dart Auditorium.

•

September 23 – Visitation to the ISUS program in Dayton, OH. He asked President
Cunningham to further elaborate on this topic in her report.

•

September 28 – The Cherry Commission held a public hearing at the West Campus.
President Cunningham is a member of that commission.

•

Workforce Development Board – The Lansing area in partnership with Lansing
Community College received one of the Regional Skill Alliance grants in
manufacturing.
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•

RED Team – There was discussion about a new race track, General Motors, plants in
Lansing area, and the branding of Lansing. He shared that the RED Team discussed
what the image of Lansing is to the community and the outside area. The response
was not a positive one. The team will be working hard to change that image.

•

A meeting with LCC and the UAW regarding School Registered Apprenticeship at the
Ingham Intermediate School District. He was there representing the UAW. The
meeting was regarding expanding apprenticeships beyond building trades,
manufacturing, and health care among other areas.

•

On Friday, October 15 there was a follow up meeting to the ISUS Program visit. He
asked President Cunningham to elaborate more on this topic in her report.

•

He announced that Lip Sync will be held on Sunday, October 24, and he will be
participating in this year’s event. His main act is from Big River, playing the character
“The Young Fool.”

Board Member Reports
Trustee Canady – Japan Adventure Program
Trustee Canady reminded the Board of the slideshow he gave in June where he pointed out
that the College’s counterpart in Japan has honored their relationship with LCC in various
ways. He had asked administration to do the same and they came up with two options. One
option is to dedicate a room in the Herrmann Conference Center and the second option is to
recognize the work of Dr. TaiSung Kim and the Biwako Kisen Company through a
professorship. Trustee Canady stated that President Cunningham had the opportunity to
speak with several representatives from Biwako Kisen Company and asked that she
elaborate on that discussion.
President Cunningham stated that the Biwako Kisen Company would prefer to honor the
founder of the program and not the company, as is the Japanese tradition. They respect the
individual who founded the Japan Adventure Program who was Mr. Shigematsu.
Trustee Canady’s preference was to name a room after the founder of the program because
it is more tangible. However, he asked the Board for their input.
Chairperson Laverty asked for a chance to review the options and have it on the agenda at
the next meeting.
Trustee Pelleran recommended asking the State Representative and the State Senator for
joint resolutions in the Senate to show that it is also from our state government.
President Cunningham stated that the 25th anniversary of the Japan Adventure Program is
coming up in less than two years. She stated that something could be done now and also
suggested having the resolutions presented at that time.
The Board agreed with President Cunningham’s recommendation.
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Trustee Canady suggested contacting the Lansing City Council and the Mayor for similar
resolutions. He recommended that this be tabled for next month while these items are
worked out. Trustee Canady volunteered to contact the City Council and the Mayor.
Trustee Proctor & Trustee Murray – Association of Community College Trustees
Trustee Proctor distributed a written summary to the Board of Trustees that contained
highlights of the Association of Community College Trustees Leadership Congress in New
Orleans, LA (the summary is on file with the official Board materials.)
Trustees Proctor and Murray reviewed the document with the Board.
Chairperson Laverty thanked Trustees Proctor and Murray for having attended the
conference. He asked President Cunningham to elaborate on the presentation she and staff
gave at the Leadership Congress.
President Cunningham stated that along with herself, Vice President Ruth Borger, Ms.
Annette Parker, Ms. Debra Dolman, and Mr. Chris Thelander from Siemens presented on the
College’s alternative energy initiative. Over 60 people attended the session and it went very
well. She shared that people were amazed that a community college was involved with
alternative energy and had received the money to help fund the initiative. President
Cunningham also thanked Trustees Proctor and Murray for attending the conference.
There was brief discussion regarding alternative energy initiatives and potential partnerships.
Trustee Rasmusson – Legal Counsel Discussion
Chairperson Laverty distributed a potential change to bylaw 1.6.1 for discussion which
pertains to legal issues (it is on file with the official Board materials.) He stated that the Board
had a discussion in September regarding what the Board is doing in reducing legal costs.
There have been strides made already to reduce costs and asked the Board for their input.
Trustee Rasmusson explained that the proposed bylaw change embodies the six issues he
mentioned before such as bidding, areas of expertise of attorneys, and the fiduciary
obligation of any counsel is to the College not to a Board member or officer, as an example.
Trustee Rasmusson asked the Board to review this and discuss this next month.
PRESIDENT’S REPORT
Informational Items
College Spotlight – LCC Television
President Cunningham asked Vice President Borger to introduce the spotlight.
Vice President Borger stated that the LCC TV program is a successful example of how
programming can be managed effectively across the College. Over the last year a special
focus has been added on expanding community programming through the joint efforts of the
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Office of Advancement and Media Services in the Student and Academic Support Division
led by Dean Judith Cardenas. She introduced Mr. Martin Pennoni the Director of Media
Services.
Mr. Pennoni shared that over a year ago it was decided to improve LCC TV programming
because it was an under-utilized college asset. He provided a presentation on the new
programming on the LCC TV channel (the presentation is on file with the official Board
materials.)
Mr. Pennoni introduced two students, Mr. Kenneth Akini and Ms. Sara Cosenza who both are
Media Technology students and are working in the Media Services Department
Mr. Akini shared how his education and experience in working with the LCC TV Channel has
benefited him greatly.
Ms. Cosenza shared that her education and experience in working with the College’s radio
station helped her get a job with a radio station in Ontario, Canada.
Mr. Pennoni also introduced the following Media Services staff members that were present:
Mr. Dave Downing, Ms. Karen Love, Mr. Dennis Clark, Mr. Lyle Laylin, Mr. Marc Smyth, and
Mr. Thor Leach. He also introduced Ms. Chris Hollister and Mr. Chris Holman who are not
part of the Media Services Department, but they assist the department in many ways.
Trustee Pelleran stated that she thinks the shows are wonderful and enjoys the “Coffee
Break” show. This channel is a nice showcase for LCC and the community.
Trustee Rasmusson shared that he thinks the Media Services Department is on the right
track in putting students to work.
President Cunningham thanked the wonderful staff for doing an outstanding job. She shared
that any TV or radio program in the community is aware of the great work of Mr. Dave
Downing.
Chairperson Laverty commended them for doing a great job and making dramatic
improvements to the channel. He felt that this channel is great for the community, the
College, and the students.
Human Resources – New Hires, Leaves and Sabbaticals
Administrative Appointment—
Nancy Dietrich, Director of Assessment & Advising, Counseling and Advising
Student and Academic Support
ISUS Construction Program
President Cunningham reported that in September over 50 people went to Dayton, OH to
review this program. There was a follow-up meeting on October 15 and over 50 people
attended. She shared that there is a tremendous amount of momentum involved in either
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replicating the program or something similar to the construction program here in the
community. At the end of the follow-up meeting, the next steps were to work with
Superintendent Banks and others to pull together a small committee to review how to
structure this program, tackle this issue and bring this type of program to the Lansing region.
President Cunningham stated that there is a tremendous interest from the community to
develop a similar program in this area. She publicly thanked Mr. Chris Holman for donating
the transportation for the trip to Dayton, OH.
Chairperson Laverty stated that he completed some research on the high school dropout
issue in the community. He shared that the graduation rate is approximately 70%. The
dropout situation in the country has worsened and it is costing about $844 billion a year. It
equates to 2,800 kids dropping out of school every day of the school year. It is estimated that
there will be a worker shortage of approximately 8,000 workers in our community by the year
2010. He was very excited about hearing of this program and is in support of developing a
similar one here.
St. Johns – Expanded Service Area
President Cunningham was pleased to report that the administration has done their due
diligence in contacting people in St. Johns, having surveyed the community, and having had
meetings with community leaders including the Mayor, Superintendents, construction
workers, and small business owners. Based on research the consensus is to have St. Johns
part of the College’s tax district. Next month a resolution will be brought forward for the
Board’s approval to annex St. Johns Public Schools.
Trustee Canady recommended seeking legal counsel’s advice in adding language to the
ballot proposal that would include the benefits of becoming part of the college district. He
suggested the following: “Should the district be expanded to include St. Johns to enable the
students in the St. Johns district to take advantage of in-district costs and in-district tuition.”
He felt that it is important that similar language be added, if allowed by the law, because that
may improve the chances of a successful election.
President Cunningham responded that the administration will follow-up with the College’s
legal counsel on adding this language.
Chairperson Laverty shared that the UAW contract with Federal Mogul was ratified recently
and that may also help our chances.
President Cunningham shared that when the survey was conducted in St. Johns the contract
had not been ratified and there was a concern that would change the outlook of the
responses. However, it did not change the outlook because people showed more of an
interest in retraining and education.
Budget Update
President Cunningham asked Vice President Barbara Larson to provide the Board with a
budget update.
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Vice President Larson reported that the College is four months into the fiscal year and the
state appropriation language did include the tuition restraint incentive; therefore, the $28.6
million state appropriation seems to be intact. She stated that the year has begun with some
challenges including the purchase of the constitution hall by the State of Michigan. This will
have a negative impact on the property tax revenue stream by approximately $100,000.
Vice President Larson also shared that healthcare open enrollment has begun for nonbargaining employees. Their plans are Community Blues and Physicians Health Plan. The
increase in Community Blues insurance premiums is 34% that may mean an increase of
$158,000 for the College if the employees enroll in their current plans.
Trustee Rasmusson suggested doing some long-range thinking about healthcare. He
recommended budgeting a couple thousand dollars for a consultant, not tied to the insurance
business, to review other options.
Trustee Rasmusson distributed, for the Board’s review, a document titled Healthcare
Expense and Modest Long-term Research for Solutions (it is on file with the official Board
materials.)
Chairperson Laverty asked if work of this nature has already been done at the College.
President Cunningham responded that there is a joint labor and management Healthcare
Task Force that is exploring a long-term solution for healthcare. She suggested having the
Task Force be a part of the discussion in the future.
Facilities Master Plan Update
President Cunningham stated that a submission to the State is required by law every
November. She asked Vice President Larson to provide a brief overview of the Facilities
Master Plan update.
Vice President Larson gave a PowerPoint presentation of the Facilities Master Plan update.
She distributed information to the Board (the presentation and documentation is on file with
the official Board materials.)
Vice President Larson introduced Mr. Chris Strugar-Fritsch who is the new Director of
Facilities. He continued with the PowerPoint presentation and reviewed the following four
priority concepts included in the master plan update: Dart Auditorium expansion, Hospitality
Program expansion, the Campus Beautification Plan, and a University/Student Center.
There was a question and answer period throughout the presentation.
President Cunningham asked Vice President Larson to address why it is important to include
this update now.
Vice President Larson responded that this is an opportunity to submit the plan for capital
outlay funding. She stated that the last time the College received capital outlay funding was
in 1993 for the Abel B. Sykes, Jr. Technology and Learning Center.
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There was discussion regarding the future of the Old Central Building, the potential sale of
property and the parking situation on campus with the recent and upcoming moves to the
West Campus.
Trustee Pelleran expressed concern for the potential of an additional parking structure
without having a thorough analysis of the current parking needs on campus. She asked that
the administration provide such analysis before the Board makes any decisions on the
facilities master plan.
President Cunningham responded that the plan must be submitted to the State in November.
The potential sale of any property will be a continuous discussion and will be brought before
the Board. She said the issue of parking is a very fluid issue. More students are taking online courses, there are 50 acres at the West Campus, and a potential consolidation of classes
in East Lansing; therefore, parking needs will not be determined until the dust settles.
However, contingency planning continues and no recommendation is being given at this point
in time.
There was continued discussion about the facilities master plan.
Chairperson Laverty expressed support for the four concepts that were added to the plan.
Action Items
Approval of Minutes - September 20, 2004 Regular Meeting
President Cunningham presented the September 20, 2004 regular meeting minutes for the
Board’s approval.
The Board had no changes to the minutes.
Educational Support Personnel –Tentative Agreement
President Cunningham presented the tentative agreement for the Board’s approval. She
thanked Mr. Tim Zeller, Ms. Jan Stuart and Ms. Mary Stroebel for their work on the tentative
agreement.
There was discussion about the tentative agreement.
President Cunningham shared that she has received very positive comments from the union
regarding the tone, tenor, and the relationship at the table in negotiating this contract.
Trustee Pelleran thanked Mr. Zeller and the administration for their timeliness in working out
the distribution of literature issue.
Finance - Approval of Bids
Vice President Larson presented the following bids for the Board’s approval:
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1. Architect and Engineering Consultant Services. The following vendors were selected for
this bid:
Building Envelope

Structure Tec Corp. from Kalamazoo, MI

Forensic Investigation

Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates Inc. from Bingham, MI

Full Service

DLZ Michigan Inc. from Lansing, MI
Fiskbeck, Thompson, Carr & Huber, Inc. from Grand Rapids, MI
Hobbs & Black Associates Inc. from Lansing, MI
Mayotte Jacob Architects from Lansing, MI

Master Plan

DSA Architects from Berkley, MI

Mechanical/Electrical

Clark Trombley Randers from Lansing, MI
Matrix Consulting Engineers Inc. from Lansing, MI

Parking

Carl Walker Inc. from Kalamazoo, MI
Walker Parking Consultants from Kalamazoo, MI

2. Sole Source for a two-year lease of the Livingston County Center in the amount of
$124,542 annually.
President Cunningham shared that the College has been asked to have a presence in the
new Howell High School that will be completed by 2006. Lansing Community College is the
only community college being asked to be a part of the high school. Negotiations are
currently underway of what this may entail and that is why the lease presented was only for
two years.
IT WAS MOVED by Trustee Pelleran and supported by Trustee Canady to approve the
President’s Report.
Roll call vote:
Ayes: Canady, Laverty, Murray, Pelleran, Proctor, Rasmusson
Nays: None
Absent: Brannan
Motion carried.
CLOSED SESSION
The Board did not go into closed session.
PUBLIC COMMENT
New Speaker – I just want to thank you for the presentation about the LCC channel. Arts
Performance 31. I was just wondering about an agenda for that. Where do we find out
what’s on when? I really would like to see the LCC Board meetings on TV.
(Laughter.)
9

President Cunningham – Marti Pennoni, in the back, will get you a list of what’s on when.
ADJOURNMENT
IT WAS MOVED by Trustee Canady and supported by Trustee Proctor for the meeting to
adjourn.
Ayes: Canady, Laverty, Murray, Pelleran, Proctor, Rasmusson
Nays: None
Absent: Brannan
Motion carried.
The meeting was adjourned at 8:01 p.m.
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Lansing Community College
State of Michigan
RESOLUTION PROPOSING
ANNEXATION OF ST. JOHNS PUBLIC SCHOOLS

A regular meeting of the Board of Trustees of Lansing Community College, State of
Michigan, was held in the Herrmann Conference Center, located at 520 North Capitol Avenue,
Lansing, Michigan, on November 15, 2004 at 6 o’clock p.m., prevailing Eastern Time.
PRESENT:

__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

ABSENT:

__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Trustee ____________________
and supported by Trustee ______________________.
WHEREAS, Lansing Community College (the “College” or the “Community College
District”) is a community college district organized under Act 331, Public Acts of Michigan,
1966, as amended (“Act 331”), and under the provisions of Act 331 may propose annexation of a
contiguous local school district to the Community College District; and
WHEREAS, the College proposes annexation of St. Johns Public Schools (the “School
District”) to the Community College District; and
WHEREAS, Section 41 of Act 331 provides that the College’s Board of Trustees shall
obtain approval of the proposed annexation from the State Superintendent of Public Instruction
(the “State Approval”), and upon receipt of State Approval, the Secretary of the Board of
Trustees shall file a certified copy of this annexation resolution and the State Approval with the
Secretary of the Board of Education of the School District; and
WHEREAS, Section 39(1) of Act 331, as amended, effective January 1, 2005, provides
that the College shall file a copy of the resolution requesting a special election with Secretary of
the Board of Education of the School District and the school district filing official at least 60
days prior to any regular election date; and
WHEREAS, Section 42(1) of Act 331, as amended, effective January 1, 2005, provides
that if the College files this annexation resolution and the State Approval with the Secretary of
the Board of Education of School District more than 90 day or less than 21 days before the date
of the School District’s regular school election, the College shall specify the regular election date
for the special election to consider the question of annexation; and

WHEREAS, Michigan Election Law, Act 116 of 1954, as amended, effective January 1,
2005, establishes four regular election dates to be held in February, May, August and November
and provides that a school district may designate the May or November regular election date for
its regular school election; and
WHEREAS, Section 39(2) of Act 331, as amended, effective January 1, 2005, provides
that the Secretary of the Board of Education of the School District shall request that the school
district filing official call the special election on the regular election date specified by the
College; and
WHEREAS, the College wishes to designate that the special election to consider the
question of annexation shall be held on the regular election date of February 22, 2005.
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT:
1.
The College proposes annexation of the St. Johns Public Schools district pursuant
to the provisions of the Act 331 at a special election to be held in the School District on the
February 22, 2005 regular election date. The Secretary of the Board of Trustees is hereby
directed to file a certified copy of this annexation resolution with the State Superintendent of
Public Instruction together with any other materials which shall be required to obtain State
Approval of the proposed annexation. The officers, administrators, agents and attorneys of the
College are hereby authorized and directed to take all other actions necessary or convenient and
to execute and deliver any documents and certificates as may be required to obtain the State
Approval.
2.
Upon receipt of State Approval of the proposed annexation of St. Johns Public
Schools from the State Superintendent of Public Instruction, the Secretary of the Board of
Trustees is hereby directed to file a certified copy of this annexation resolution and the State
Approval with the Secretary of the Board of Education of the School District and to request that
the school district filing official call a special election in the School District on Tuesday,
February 22, 2005 for the purpose of voting on the question of annexation.
3.
At the special election two annexation propositions shall be presented to the
registered electors in the School District in substantially the following form:
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Under Michigan law, St. Johns Public Schools residents will only be able to join the Lansing
Community College district if both propositions I and II are approved.
LANSING COMMUNITY COLLEGE
The following proposal asks voters in St. Johns Public Schools if they wish to join the Lansing
Community College district. If this proposal is approved in St. Johns Public Schools, residents
would be eligible for in-district tuition at Lansing Community College.
ANNEXATION PROPOSITION I
Shall St. Johns Public Schools be annexed as part of the
community college district of Lansing Community College, State
of Michigan, in accordance with the provisions of Act 331, of the
Public Acts of Michigan, 1966, as amended?
YES
NO
The following proposal asks voters of St. Johns Public Schools to invest in higher education
services by adopting 4.00 mills for Lansing Community College beginning in 2005. The actual
millage that would be assessed is 3.8375 mills since the current Lansing Community College
voted millage of 4.00 mills has been rolled back to approximately 3.8375 mills through
application of the Headlee Amendment to the Michigan Constitution. Under existing law, the
College would levy no more than 3.8375 mills in St. Johns Public Schools.

ANNEXATION MILLAGE PROPOSITION II
Shall taxes be imposed by Lansing Community College on the
taxable property in St. Johns Public Schools as new additional
millage in an amount not to exceed 4.00 mills ($4.00 per $1,000 of
taxable value), in perpetuity to provide funds to the College for
Community College purposes? Of the 4.00 mills, no more than
3.8375 mills ($3.8375 per $1,000 of taxable value) would be
permitted under existing law to be levied. If approved, this millage
would raise an estimated $1,813,420 for Lansing Community
College in 2005.

YES
NO
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4.
The officers and administrators of the College are authorized to consent to such
revisions to the forms of the annexation propositions as required or permitted by law.
5.
The officers and administrators of the College are authorized to do all other acts
and things as required or permitted by law to be done by the College in order to cause the
propositions proposed by this resolution to be submitted to vote of the electors of the School
District to be annexed to the Community College District.
6.
All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they conflict with the provisions
of this resolution be and the same hereby are rescinded.
AYES :

__________________________________________________________________
__________________________________________________________________

NAYS:

__________________________________________________________________

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED
__________________________________________
Secretary, Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College

I hereby certify that the attached is a true and complete copy of a resolution adopted by
the Board of Trustees of Lansing Community College, State of Michigan, at a regular Meeting
on November 15, 2004, and that public notice of said meeting was given pursuant to and in full
compliance with Act No. 267, Public Acts of Michigan, 1976, and that minutes of the meeting
were kept and will be or have been made available as required by said Act 267.

__________________________________________
Secretary, Board of Trustees
Lansing Community College

LALIB:130363.2\050806-00003
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TENTATIVE AGREEMENT
AA/MFT&SRP and Lansing Community College
Length of the Agreement: 2 years, with a salary re-opener for the second year.
Contract Language:
1. Recognition Clause – Added language to further clarify which positions should
be in the Association.
2. Regular and Temporary Full-Time Contracts – Added language further defines
and clarifies the use of regular and temporary full-time contracts.
3. Probationary Employees – Added language to clarify the status of probationary
employees.
4. Seniority – There was no language in the contract addressing seniority.
Language was added defining seniority and how it can be accrued.
5. Reductions in Staff, Layoffs and Recall – Again, there was no language in the
current contract regarding these three areas. We have added language defining
all three.
Written Notification of Termination:
6. Reduced the required time limit for written notification of voluntary termination of
employment from 4 months to 4 weeks.
Evaluation/Staff Development Plan:
7. Established a joint task force to create a new evaluation/staff development
process for administrators.
8. Due Process – Language was added requiring the notification of the Association
of an investigation of any member.
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9.

Responsibility Dollars – The letter of agreement defining the use of
responsibility dollars has been added to the contract.

10. Classification Review – Language was added defining and clarifying the
reclassification process.

Compensation:
1.

Compensation – Full-Time Employees
a. All full-time members will receive a 2.75% increase at the same step of the
same level, except members at step 15 prior to July 1, 2004. Members at
step 15 prior to July 1, 2004, will be moved to step 16.
b. Step 16 is last year’s step 15, plus $500 longevity bonus, plus 2.75%
increase. .

2. Compensation – Part-time Employees
a. Part-time employees will be placed on the salary schedule at a level based
on their job description and a step based on years of service (capped at
Step 5 for less than 15 years; Step 6 for 15-20 years; Step 7 for 20 years or
greater and capped at an increase of $3,000 for the year). Retroactive to
9/26/04.
b. Part-time administrative, professional, and technical positions within the
Association will be recognized as salaried employees and will receive a
consistent salary over 26 pay periods based on the number of hours
assigned to that position. For example, if a position is designated as a 30hour position, that employee will be paid for 30 hours/week for 26 pay
periods regardless of the hours actually worked. If one week the employee
works 25 hours and the next week the employee works 35 hours, as a
salaried employee, he/she will be paid for 30 hours. NOTE: Positions will
be designated as 20, 25, or 30 hour positions.
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Benefits:
1. Benefit – Full-Time and Part-Time
a. Critical Family Illness Leave was eliminated, but sick time available to tend
to immediate family members was increased from 2 days to 5 days.
b. The definition of immediate family is expanded to include mother-in-law,.
father-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, and grandchildren.
2. Benefits – Part-Time
a. Because part-time employees will be considered salaried employees, they
will receive the same holidays as full-time employees. A 30-hour employee
will be paid for 30 hours regardless of whether or not a holiday falls within
that week. This also applies to jury duty and bereavement.
b. Paid Time Off (PTO) - Paid Time Off has been increased and will now be
based on years of service.
Years of Service
0 to 3
3+ to 6
6+

PTO
60 hours
80 hours
100 hours

Also members will be able to carry over up to one (1) year’s unused PTO.
c. Degree Recognition – The Degree Recognition benefit will now be prorated
based on the full-time stipend of $1,000.

_____________________________
For the College

_____________________________
For the Association

_____________________________
Date

_____________________________
Date
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PRE-AWARD TRANSMITTAL DOCUMENT
Bid No.: 7241-269-04CD
Project Title: Passenger Bus

Bid Opening Date: October 28, 2004
Buyer:
Caroline Duda

1. Description of supply or service:
2005 Thomas Built, handicap accessible passenger bus. Capacity of 50 persons. To replace an
eleven year old, 33-passenger bus that has no handicap facilities and that needs a new
transmission (replacement cost of approximately $6,000). The radiator also needs to be
replaced at a cost of approximately $2,000 and the double air conditioning system does not work
and would need to be replaced to meet the new freon mandate (approximate cost $16,000). The
engine leaks and burns oil and the cost to replace it would be approximately $7,000.
2. Bids Received:
The initial bid was issued in September and only one bid was received. A second bid was issued
and six additional suppliers were identified. Bids were sent to a total of ten suppliers. Bids were
received from two suppliers. This bid was also posted on-line at http://www.epaconline.com
Supplier

Location

MBE/WBE

LCC Tax District

Bid Amount

Bob Maxey
Ford
Chicago Bus
Sales
Edward H
Davis & Sons
Hoekstra
Specialty
Vehicles, LLC
Holland Bus
Company
Kerlin Bus
Sales
Midwest
Transit of
Michigan
Myers
Equipment Co
Nelson’s Bus
Service Inc
Ponder
Equipment Co

Detroit, MI

No

No

$173,500.00

Crestwood, No
IL
Langsville, No
OH
Grand
No
Rapids, MI

No

No Response

No

No Response

No

$160,164.80

Holland,
No
MI
Silver Lake, No
IN
Eaton
No
Rapids, MI

No

No Response

No

No Response

No

No Response

Canfield,
No
OH
Whitewater, No
WI
Litchfield,
No
IL

No

No Response

No

No Response

No

No Response

C:\Documents and Settings\mendezn\Desktop\Temporary\NOV1504\Preaward Transmittal Document Passenger
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If printed, this is an uncontrolled distribution. Check current revision.

PURFR032 – Rev 1

3. Award Recommendation:

The evaluation committee consisted of staff members from Purchasing and Police and Public
Safety. The evaluation committee recommends award to Hoekstra Specialty Vehicles, LLC for
$160,164.80 which was the lowest bid, meeting all required specifications, and was deemed the
most advantageous to the College.

4. Reviewed By:

________________________________________
Rebecca G. Beard, C.P.M.
Director, Purchasing & Materials Management

____________________
Date

________________________________________
Barbara A Larson, Vice President
Administrative Services/CFO

____________________
Date

5. Board of Trustee Review:
Approve/Disapprove
_________________________________________

____________________
Date
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